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Corporate Information
NAIEF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
KITCHELL Osman Bin

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

CHAN Yin, David (Vice Chairman)
DAVIS Angela Hendricks
CHOI Ka Wing

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen
TSANG Wing Ki
NGAI Wai Kin

AUDIT COMMITTEE
NGAI Wai Kin (Chairman)
CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen
TSANG Wing Ki
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NGAI Wai Kin (Chairman)
TSANG Wing Ki

KITCHELL Osman Bin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
(all members appointed
with effect from 16 March 2012)
KITCHELL Osman Bin (Chairman)
CHOI Ka Wing
CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen
TSANG Wing Ki
NGAI Wai Kin

COMPANY SECRETARY
LIU Tsui Fong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

CUSTODIAN
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Corporate Information
NAIEF
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Hong Kong
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Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Unity
Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2012 (the "“Year").

FINAL RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Group’s audited consolidated loss attributable to
shareholders was HK$86,232,011 for the Year (20717:
HK$246,407,511). The substantial decrease in net loss as
compare to last year was mainly attributable to decrease in
realised loss on disposal of its listed investments classified
under investments held for trading and unrealised loss on
listed securities which was as a result of volatile in equity
market in Hong Kong. Loss per share was HK$0.58 (2011
as restated: HK$4.60).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2071: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment company and the
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 27 October 1999 pursuant to Chapter
21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the Year, the
Group remains principally engaged in listed investments in
Hong Kong and in other main stock markets around the
world and also in unlisted companies.

Given continuous volatile market condition, the listed
investments held for trading of the Group has suffered
and posted realised loss of HK$2,005,477 (20117:
HK$63,406,376), while the listed available-for-sale
investments reported realised loss of HK$38,781,423
(2011: HK$22,224,766). During the Year, the Board
remained focus on listed equity in Hong Kong. The
Company keep caution in identifying any investment
opportunities to achieve medium-term or long-term capital
appreciation.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

With a view to keep balance of its investment portfolio,
the Board would maintain diversified investment portfolio
to cover a wide range of business sectors, including, but
not limited to, companies engaged in financial sectors,
information technology sectors, consumer goods, industrial
goods and manufacturing sector, property sector, retailing
and services sector and natural resources sectors.

The classification of financial assets of the Group as at 31
December 2012 was as follows:
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Details of top ten investments of the Group are set out in
note 16(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resource and Capital Structure
The Group’'s asset portfolio was mainly financed by
internally generated cash resources and fund raising
activities. As at 31 December 2012, net current assets
of the Group amounted to HK$77,099,074 (2011:
HK$18,627,101) with a cash and bank balances of
HK$8,347,968 (2011: HK$1,413,801). The consolidated
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

net asset value per share of the Company as at 31
December 2012 was HK$1.24 (2011: HK$0.43). The
consolidated net asset value per share as at 31 December
2012 is calculated based on the net assets of the Group
of HK$240,321,016 (2011: HK$185,634,471) and
194,035,201 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at
that date (2071 431,189,338 shares).

There was no material change in available credit facilities
when compared with the financial year ended 31
December 2011. Interest-bearing borrowing amounted
to HK$50 million as at 31 December 2011 has been fully
settled during the Year. The gearing ratio of the Group
was 0.15% as at 31 December 2012 (2071: 28.65%),
which is calculated based on the Group’s total liabilities
divided by its total assets. Taking into account of the
amount of liquid assets in hand and available short-term
or margin loan facilities and there was no material capital
commitment, the Board are of the view that the Group
has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing
operational requirements.

On 27 February 2012, the Company completed a
rights issue on two for one basis at an issue price of
HK$0.10 each which resulted in issue of 862,378,676
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each with net proceeds of
approximately HK$81.26 million. The net proceeds were
used for listed securities investments and general working
capital of the Group.

On 26 November 2012, the Company also placed
32,339,200 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each through
a placing agent to not less than six independent investors
at a price of HK$0.55 per placing share, raising further net
proceeds of approximately HK$16.62 million to enhance
the Company’s capital structure. The net price per placing
share was approximately HK$0.51 and the net proceeds
were used for listed securities investments and general
working capital of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

On 17 May 2012, a special resolution was passed by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company to approve the capital reorganisation including
share consolidation of every eight issued shares into one
consolidated share and capital reduction. The Grand
Court of the Cayman Islands had approved the capital
reduction of the Company on 9 August 2012 and the
capital reorganisation became effective after 4:00 p.m.
on 17 August 2012, pursuant to which an aggregate
credit amount of HK$11,318,720 arose from the capital
reduction and amount of HK$346,585,489 standing to the
credit of capital reduction reserve account of the Company
was applied towards cancelling the accumulated losses of
the Company.

The Board has been actively seeking fund raising
opportunities to strengthen the Company’s financial
position.

Charge of Assets and Margin Facilities

Details of charge of assets and margin facilities of the
Group as of 31 December 2012 are set out in note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities of the Company as of 31 December
2012 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

As at 31 December 2012, the majority of the Group’s
investments were either denominated in Hong Kong dollars
or Singapore dollars. The Board considers its exposure to
foreign exchange risk was not significant, therefore, no
financial instruments was made to hedge such exposures.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

PROSPECTS

The global economy in 2012 was threatened by the
euro debt crisis, although the crisis turned stable during
the third quarter following the policy actions taken by
the European Central Bank and European authorities.
Moreover, the recession in the eurozone and the slowdown
of the US economy have continued to weigh heavily on
economic activities in the region.

The Hong Kong economy faced strong external headwinds
in 2012, showing only a modest year-on-year growth.
Supported largely by stable job and income conditions,
private consumption grew steadily, while investment
activities held up remarkably well on the back of intensive
large-scale infrastructure works and a surge in private
sector building activity. Local property market showed
signs of exuberance, with the rise in flat prices exceeding
overall income growth. The local stock market witnessed
tremendous volatility in which the Hang Sang Index
rebounded in the first five months but plunged in June
2012. Local stock prices rebounded again during the third
quarter, amid some stabilisation of the euro debt crises
and the new round of quantitative easing in the US.

Since the beginning of 2013, the world economy has
been stabilising. There are signs of recovery in the US. In
addition, the valuation of Chinese stock market is at a
reasonable level. Investors may invest more in Chinese, as
well as in local, stock market in the coming months. The
Company will keep an eye on the changing environment
of the global economy, and will continue to adopt and
maintain cautious and pragmatic investment approach
in order to bring better return for our shareholders.
The Board will persist to look for suitable investment
opportunities not only to modify but also to expand its
portfolio, as and when the favorable circumstances appear,
the Board may consider fundraising to strengthen its asset
base.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had ten employees,
including four executive directors, three independent non-
executive directors and three staff. They are remunerated
based on their performance, working experience and
prevailing market standards. Total staff costs paid for the
Year amounted to HK$4,275,665 (2071: HK$3,830,974)
and there has been no significant change in the Group's
remuneration policy.

Comprehensive disclosure of directors’ emoluments
pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is set out in note 11(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express
our appreciation to the staff and management team of the
Group for their contribution during the Year and also to
give our sincere gratitude to all our shareholders for their
continuous support.

By order of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited

B-REZRARAA

KITCHELL Osman Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2013
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Biographical Details of Directors
SR EAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin (“Mr. KITCHELL"), aged 48,
a Canadian citizen, completed his high-school education
in Hong Kong and undergraduate studies in Canada.
Mr. KITCHELL had obtained a honourary diploma from
Pickering College in Canada. Mr. KITCHELL studied
Economics in the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr.
KITCHELL is a veteran investor mainly in the Hong Kong
equity markets with over 15 years of experience. Mr.
KITCHELL had been an investor managing a private family
fund. Mr. KITCHELL was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 10 January 2005 and also appointed
as the chief executive officer of the Company on 17
January 2006. Mr. KITCHELL was elected as chairman of
the Company on 16 January 2008. Mr. KITCHELL was also
appointed as a director of all subsidiary companies within
the Group.

Mr. CHAN Yin, David (“Mr. CHAN"), aged 52,
Singaporean, holds an MBA and a Degree of Bachelor
of Business Administration from Simon Fraser University,
Canada. Mr. CHAN has over 20 years of experience in
the asset management industry. Mr. CHAN had been an
executive director at Centurion Investment Management
Pte Ltd where he was the Head of Alternative and
Listed Equity Products. Prior to this, Mr. CHAN was a
Managing Partner of Swiss-Asia Financial Service Pte. Ltd,
a Managing Director at AGF Asset Management Asia Ltd
and an Associate Director of Investment at Nomura Capital
Management (Singapore) Ltd. Mr. CHAN started his
career as a Fund Management Officer at Overseas Union
Bank. Mr. CHAN is currently also an independent director
of Synear Food Holdings Limited (stock code: 7Z75) and
Changtian Plastic & Chemical Limited (stock code: D2V),
both companies are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Limited. Mr. CHAN was appointed as an executive director
and vice chairman of the Company on 23 May 2011.

1 O ANNUAL REPORT 2012  Unity Investments Holdings Limited

HITES

KITCHELL Osman Bin% 4% ([KITCHELL
fED - BHF4A8m - BIMEXRAER  &H
ARBBERMERTHTBERHE LARR
72 o KITCHELLSE A4 HY 18 hN & KPickering
Collegef 2 2 88 UK ° KITCHELLE AR
MEXRZME RXBEBLES - KITCHELL
EERBBREMSIERREE  #HEA
B+ AFRE”LE - KITCHELLEE S AF
BILWARKES ZIRESE  KITCHELLAE £
RZZEZRF—ATREZERLRRRZ
WITESE —TEF—HATEHESEA
NAZITHARE - KITCHELLE AR —ZEF
NE-—ATABEHEEHEIRRAIERE -
KITCHELLEE ETMEZF REE RN B B
NAElZES -

PREEEE (TRREED - IRFS528% - AHTIN
WA A IIEASimon Fraser University
ERzZ2IBEEBEEILRIBNEEELE
U -BREATEEEBE T EERA_T
FRB BRELERBEREEEERA
AZHMITESRS FTESBERERLETE
HEm-EUZA REEGRELE
Swiss-Asia Financial Service Pte. LtdZ ¥
1TE% A - AGF Asset Management Asia
Ltdz & 443 - A KNomura Capital
Management (Singapore) Ltdz BhI2#% &
EE o RAEAITR IR I EREIRIT H
TESEBAE - RAEEBRAFMER
SRAERAR LT RARIBRZRRMIERER
NAE (BRHRSE : Z75) R RREEBR AR
(BRI ASE - D2V) 2 BUES - RAEER
CE——FRAZT=HEZERERA
HITEFREEE -



Biographical Details of Directors
SR EAERE

Ms. DAVIS Angela Hendricks (“Ms. DAVIS"), aged 46,
holds Master of Laws Degree, Juris Doctor, cum laude,
and a Bachelor of Science Degree, cum laude. Ms. DAVIS
is a member of the Kentucky Bar Association. Ms. DAVIS
has extensive experience as a commercial litigator in the
Louisville, Kentucky offices of Stites & Harbison, and
as a deal lawyer in the New York and Beijing offices of
Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison. Ms. DAVIS was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 18
June 2008. Ms. DAVIS was also appointed as a director of
all subsidiary companies within the Group.

Ms. CHOI Ka Wing (“Ms. CHOI"), aged 30, completed
her high-school education in Hong Kong and had
further her studies at the Perth Institute of Business
and Technology in Perth, Australia. Ms. CHOI worked in
customer services in the catering division of a 5 star hotel
in Hong Kong for over one year and gained experience
in the food and beverage and entertainment businesses.
Ms. CHOI was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 9 October 2006. Ms. CHOI was also
appointed as a director of all subsidiary companies within
the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen (“Mr. CHUNG"), aged
56, obtained a Bachelor Degree of Science from the
Wharton School of Business, University of Pennsylvania,
Mr. CHUNG is one of the
founders and executive directors of SDM Dental Inc.,
an investment holding company which operating dental
clinics in The People Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr.
CHUNG has extensive experience in investments in the
PRC. Mr. CHUNG had been an independent non-executive
director of Computech Holdings Limited (stock code:
8081), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange, for the period from 30 September
2004 to 30 June 2011. Mr. CHUNG was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 16
March 2004.

United States of America.
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Biographical Details of Directors
SR EAERE

Mr. TSANG Wing Ki (“Mr. TSANG"), aged 51, obtained a
master's degree in professional accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. TSANG is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. TSANG has more than 20 years of experience in
auditing and financial accounting. Mr. TSANG had been
an executive director of Noble Jewelry Holdings Limited
(currently known as Zhong Fa Zhan Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 475), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, for the period from 15 August 2008
to 20 December 2011. Mr. TSANG was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 23
September 2004.

Mr. NGAI Wai Kin (“Mr. NGAI"), aged 48, holds a
Professional Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic, a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) degree from
the University of London and a Master of Laws degree
from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. NGAI is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia
respectively. Mr. NGAI is also a barrister in England and
Wales and a barrister in Hong Kong. Mr. NGAI has over 20
years of experience in finance and accounting field in both
Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. NGAI was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 23
July 2008.
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The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are
pleased to present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are investment
holding. During the Year, the Group was principally
engaged in listed investments in Hong Kong and in other
main stock markets around the world and also in unlisted
companies.

The segment information of the Group for the Year is set
out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2012 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 40
to 107.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
Year (2011: Nil) and the Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (20717: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements, is set out on page
108. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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EE e aREe

E% =

SHARE CAPITAL R 7

Details of the movements during the Year in share capital RATRARKEE 7 SBFBSEHNES

of the Company are set out in note 19 to the consolidated B &SR MIEE19 o
financial statements.

RESERVES #E

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company RATRHBEARAARAEE ZSHFEBEHNES
during the Year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated BI SR T HMIEE20 o

financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT EENEERBEY

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to RARNEBFEANNEENERAZXEHE A

the date of this annual report were as follows: BIZEENT

Executive Directors: HITESE

Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin KITCHELL Osman Bint 4
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (E/EFHITBAEZ)

Mr. CHAN Yin, David (Vice Chairman) PREESEH (B )

Ms. DAVIS Angela Hendricks DAVIS Angela HendricksZ =+

Ms. CHOI Ka Wing E2HRBALL

Independent Non-executive Directors: BIEHITES :

Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen =il &

Mr. TSANG Wing Ki Lo LA

Mr. NGAI Wai Kin BEfRErL

Biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 10 to EEEAABREHREI0BEEZFE12H °
12.

In accordance with Article 157 of the articles of IHRBARNT 2 BB ETRMBFE15783RT -
association of the Company, Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin, Ms. KITCHELL Osman BinZt4 ~ &R\ 4 1+
CHOI Ka Wing, Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen and Mr. Al e A R ok H A A BRI BRI
TSANG Wing Ki shall retire from office by rotation at the [REEFARe FIKSRGBESE  TEE
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, BREABEEERET -

offer themselves for re-election.
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None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 24 to 36.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST-
PAID EMPLOYEES

Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors and the
five highest-paid employees of the Group during the Year
are set out in note 11(a) and 11(b) to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions
of Directors and the chief executives of the Company
and/or any of their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or other associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange was as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company RAEQAREBERZEFR
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Number of  capital of the
Name of Director Capacity shares held Company
=R YN
2BITRA
EEnE &4 R & B BHABDE
CHOI Ka Wing Beneficial owner 469,968 0.24%
2RA EnEB A
DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR ESWERORNES2ER

DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate, neither the Directors nor any
of their spouses or children under age of eighteen, had
any right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party to and in which Directors had a material
interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

1 6 ANNUAL REPORT 2012  Unity Investments Holdings Limited

BRéR e mARME21 [ BR8] —&
PIRBEES  RAFERNEFRERE > A2
7] 2 B A AT B B 2 Rl BE B 22 B BTS2 (T ) {2
EF AR AR R S E At A E 2 BX
B s (BEER) MEm 2 28
MEBBERERABE 2RBIARWTN\RT
T EETETEENRBARR ZES
HEFES °

EENERSHN 2 HER

AR A EEFME QR ERNEELE
REFHAFE NE] RG] AL B ¥
BEREEEERAREEAETERE
MLZBRAEHK



Directors’ Report
EEEWmE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 2 May 2003 are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement
scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong to all staff. Under
the Scheme, employer and employees are each required
to make mandatory contributions to the Scheme and
contributions to the Scheme vested immediately.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S SHARE

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2012, the register of interests in shares
and/or underlying shares and short positions maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of
the SFO showed that the following interests in shares
and/or underlying shares representing 5% or more of the
Company'’s issued share capital.
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Approximate

Capacity in which Number of percentage of

Name of shareholders such interest is held shares held shareholding

IR R £ R FEREZE2 5N FiEEROBE BRESOEIL

Freeman Financial Corporation Interest of controlled 17,007,750 8.77%
Limited corporation (Note 1)
REPEERERAT] ZHER 2 s (B1aE1)

Asia Hunter Global Limited Interest of controlled corporation 17,007,750 8.77%
Asia Hunter Global Limited RHAE 2 S (Note 1)
(Btet1)

Smart Jump Corporation Beneficial owner 17,007,750 8.77%
Smart Jump Corporation E=EAA (Note 1)
(Krat1)

HEC Capital Limited Interest of controlled corporation 14,792,317 7.62%

HEC Capital Limited

Note:

EHDAE 2

Kzt -

1. Based on the filings under the SFO, these shares are held 1.
by Smart Jump Corporation, which is wholly-owned by
Asia Hunter Global Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Freeman Financial Corporation Limited.

All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had notified the Company of an interest
or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares
of the Company, being 5% or more of the issued shares
capital of the Company that was required to be maintained

pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO. fiit o
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, as set out in the circular of the Company
dated 12 December 2011 and 11 January 2012, the
Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions pursuant to the Master Transactions
Agreements entered into between the Company (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) and Hennabun Capital
Group Limited (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
("HCG Group”) which were approved by the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 29 December 2011 and 2 February 2012
respectively and are subject to the reporting requirements
under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2012 were summarised herein below:

RAFE B —_FT——F+ZHA+=H
NZFE——F—AT—BHZEZARRARE
AT - AREBERBARAR (REEAH K
HHf B A7) EHennabun Capital Group
Limited (REXRZ REKHBEAF) ([HCGHE
) FI 2 ER S HEET TS ERE
R BRBEBAERSFEDINR_ZT—
—F+ A=+ NBR-ZZE—=-F-A=
HEARR B RERBRERNRS it
o WREBSF EMRRAE14A 4616 2 B
HE - REBE-_Z——F+-A=+—H
IFEZHERER S BT

Nature of transactions Amount
REME &8
HK$'000
BT T
(approximate)
(#E%0)
Financial services provided by HCG Group to the Group
(including brokerage and financial advisory services) 1,643
HHCGEERAEBREMERE (BRELLE NS R ERERE)
Margin facilities provided by HCG Group to the Group
(including margin trading and financing facilities and
interest on margin financing) (Note 1) 30,464
HHCGEERNAEEEHRZEREE
(BREREEXZILBEEERERRIEREEZNE) (K1)
Investment management services (Note 2) 1,200

REEERS (#22)
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Notes:

1. The amounts payable for margin trading and financing
facilities are determined on a revolving facility basis and
refer to the maximum amount which may be outstanding
at any given time.

2. The investment management services refer to the
investment management services provided by Enerchine
Investment Management Limited (formerly named
CU Investment Management Limited) (“Enerchine
Investment”) under investment management agreement
at a flat rate of HK$100,000 per month up to 31
December 2012. Pursuant to Rule 21.13 of the Listing
Rules, the investment manager is defined as connected
person of the Company. On 19 December 2012, the
Company and Enerchine Investment renewed the
investment management agreement for one year up to 31
December 2013 at the same terms at a management fee
of HK$100,000 per month payable in advance.

Mazars CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, was
engaged by the Board to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mazars CPA Limited had issued its unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions carried out during the
Year in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditor
of the Company confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2012:

i. had been approved by the Board;

ii. had entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the continuing connected
transactions; and

iii. had not exceeded the maximum aggregate annual
cap disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 12 December 2011 and 11 January 2012
respectively.

On 11 October 2011,
relevant resolution by the independent shareholders

conditional upon passing of the

of the Company approving the rights issue of the
Company (“Rights Issue”), the Company entered into an
Underwriting Agreement with Freeman Securities Limited
(being an indirect subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of
the Company) in relation to the underwriting arrangement
in respect of the Rights Issue. The Underwriting Agreement
was amended by a supplemental agreement between
the same parties on 30 December 2011. The Rights Issue
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 20
January 2012 and was completed on 27 February 2012.
Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Company
paid underwriting commission, at a rate of 3% of the
aggregate subscription price of the underwritten shares,
to Freeman Securities Limited amounting to approximately
HK$2,587,000 during the Year that constitutes a
connected transaction (other than connected transactions
that are exempted under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules)
and is subject to the reporting requirements under Rule
14A.45 of the Listing Rules.
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Save as mentioned above, during the Year, there are no
other connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction that are not exempt under Rules 14A.31
and 14A.33 of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
reporting requirements under Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of
the Listing Rules. The continuing connected transactions
and connected transaction which have been carried out in
2012 and disclosed above does not constitute related party
transactions pursuant to the requirements under HKAS 24
(Revised): Related Party Disclosures.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
articles of association of the Company although there are
no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficiency public float in compliance with
Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company as at the date
of this annual report comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen,
Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI Wai Kin. Mr. NGAI Wai
Kin is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
and the Company’s auditor, Mazars CPA Limited, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, auditing and
financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited consolidated financial statements and continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2012.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars
CPA Limited as auditor of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited
E-REZRARRQA

KITCHELL Osman Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company is dedicated to an ongoing
enhancement of effective and efficient corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that high
corporate governance standards are essential in providing
framework for the Company to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has applied the principles
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Former CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, which was revised and renamed as the
Corporate Governance Code (the “New CG Code”) with
effect from 1 April 2012.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the
Company has complied with all code provisions set out in
the Former CG Code and the New CG Code during the
respective applicable periods, save and except for code
provision A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7, details of which will be

explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. KITCHELL
Osman Bin was elected as chairman of the Company on
16 January 2008 and took the role of chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. KITCHELL Osman
Bin possesses essential leadership skills and has extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board is
of the view that currently vesting the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allows for more effective and efficient business planning
and decisions as well as execution of long term business
strategies.
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Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. The Company has not fixed the term of
appointment for non-executive directors, which constitutes
a deviation from code provision A.4.1. However, all
non-executive directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to Article 157 of the articles of association of the
Company which was amended on 13 September 2005.
As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting those in the
code provision.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr.
CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen and Mr. TSANG Wing Ki, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, were
unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting and
annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 May
2012 and 20 June 2012 respectively due to their other
business engagement.

The practice of the corporate governance of the Company
will be reviewed and updated from time to time in order
to comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code for the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

For the financial year ended 31 December 2012 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
four executive Directors, namely, Mr. KITCHELL Osman
Bin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. CHAN
Yin, David (Vice Chairman), Ms. DAVIS Angela Hendricks
and Ms. CHOI Ka Wing; and three independent non-
executive Directors (“INED(s)”), namely Mr. CHUNG Kong
Fei, Stephen, Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI Wai Kin.
None of the Directors have, in any respect, related to each
other in any circumstances. Two of INEDs, namely Mr.
TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI Wai Kin, have appropriate
professional accounting experience and expertise. The
Board membership is covered by recognised professional
legal, accounting and widely experienced personnel so as
to bring in valuable contribution and different professional
advice for the development of the Company. None of
Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation. Biographical details of each
of Director are set out on pages 10 to 12.

Responsibility, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board

The Board is responsible for not only limited to formulate
the corporate strategic and set-up the business
development plans, but also to monitor and supervise
the performance of the management and review the
effectiveness of internal control including the scope of
financial, operational, compliance and risk management
and preparing and approving financial statements of the
Group. Directors, collectively and individually, are aware
of their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner in
which business and affairs of the Company are managed
and operated. All Directors, including INED, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the service and
advice from the company secretary and management
of the Company. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

All Directors have grave concern, sufficient time and
attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the
Group. The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Group are delegated to the executive
board members. Each executive director of the Company
has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience
to hold his/her position in order to ensure that his/her
fiduciary duties can be carried out in an effective and
efficient manner. The Board has established three board
committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee (the “Board
Committees”) for overseeing particular of the Company’s
affairs. The composition and functions of each committee
are described below. These committees have specific
functions and authority to examine issues and report to
the Board with their recommendations (if appropriate) for
the decision of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
is Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin which constitutes a deviation
from the code provision A.2.1. The chairman is responsible
for the management of the Board and external corporate
communication. The chief executive officer is responsible
for the day-to-day operation, monitoring performance
of the management and effectiveness of the Company,
including but not limited to, the implementation of the
overall strategy of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During year ended 31 December 2012, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three INEDs representing at
least one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company
has no specific term of appointment for non-executive
Directors, including INEDs, which constitutes a deviation
from the code provision A.4.1.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the INED in respect of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers all INEDs are independent under the definition of
the Listing Rules.

Meeting Records

The Directors convened twelve full Board meetings and
four general meetings during the Year. In addition,
executive Board meetings are convened when necessary
to deal with day-to-day matters that require the Board'’s
prompt decision, and are thus usually only executive
directors would be attended. Attendance records of the
Board meetings, the meetings of the Board Committees
and general meetings during the Year were set out below:

BIFHTES
BHE-_ET——F+-A=+—BILtFE "
EEgHEETLETRAABEZERL =
BENIFNTEE (HERNSEDhESTE=
De—) AR —ZAEFHEEEXERAE
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R EZSE ETEHEZAFNTES (BIES
MIHEBMITES)  WREKREETAGXE
A4

ARARERE EHHANFI 36 RES
BUFRTESRARIBYUMCFES
HERE - EFERA - 2EBUIFNTT
EERELTRAUERG BB -

R

BEENAFERART _A2REFEEH
RIRBERAE 4N EFE TGN B
ZERAHAVTESRS SR UWREAES
SNBFHREZARER  HtAHEE
ZRRABAUTESTLR - RAFER
Exgey EFZEeHMBRAS

ZHELERINT

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ BERRY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meeting
Name #e E3e EiZEE EMZRE REZEE RRAE
Executive Directors HTEE
KITCHELL Osman Bin KITCHELL Osman Bin 12/12 - 11 1 4/4
CHAN Yin, David R 12/12 - - - 4/4
DAVIS Angela Hendricks DAVIS Angela Hendricks 112 - - - 2/4
CHOI Ka Wing 257 12112 - - 17 414
Independent non-executive BUFHITES
Directors
CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen = Hm 1212 22 - 11 0/4
TSANG Wing Ki Y ¢ 1212 22 N N 0/4
NGAI Wai Kin e 12112 20 11 i 4/4
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During the Year, a meeting of the Chairman and the
independent non-executive Directors without presence
of the executive Directors was held to discuss and review
the operation and management of the Company, and the
adequacy of systems and controls in place to safeguard
the interests of the Group.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged at the expenses
of the Company whenever necessary.

The Directors are committed to complying with code
provision A.6.5 of the New CG Code on Directors’ training
which come into effect on 1 April 2012. All Directors
have participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided their training records for the financial year ended
31 December 2012 to the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, with specific responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in
January 2003. As at the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee comprises all INEDs, namely Mr. CHUNG
Kong Fei, Stephen, Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI
Wai Kin. Mr. NGAI Wai Kin is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to the following:

o consider and review the appointment, resignation
and removal of external auditor and their fees and
supervision on whether any non-auditing services
has been provided by external auditor and giving of
advice to the Board on employment of auditor

° liaise with the Board and discuss with the external
auditor issues of significance during the audit of the

Group
o review the interim and annual results of the Group
o review the report from the external auditor in

relation to continuing connected transactions

o discuss and monitor with the management on
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control

The terms of reference of Audit Committee is updated
and adopted on 16 March 2012 which is consistent with
the New CG Code and is published on the website of the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). The Audit Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice if considers
necessary.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year
to review the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 December 2011 and the interim report for the six
months period ended 30 June 2012, which opined that
the preparations of the two sets of financial statements
were in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and practices. Number of attendance of the
Audit Committee meetings are disclosed under the section
headed “Meeting Records” above.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was
established in September 2005 with specific written
terms of reference which was updated and adopted on
16 March 2012 to comply with the New CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
to determine the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee also has the responsibility to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. The specific terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is available on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. NGAI Wai
Kin and Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and one executive Director,
namely Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin. Mr. NGAI Wai Kin
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties. One meeting was held
during the Year to review the remuneration package of
Directors. No Director, or any of his/her associates, and
executive is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
Number of attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meeting is disclosed under the section headed “Meeting
Records” above.

Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee was established in March 2012
with terms of reference to deal with the nomination
of Director including to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to recommend on matters in
relation to appointments or re-appointments of Directors
so as to ensure that the composition of the Board meets
the requirements of the Listing Rules and the Board is
capable to fulfill its obligations in terms of fiduciary duties
and can act in the best interest of the members of the
Company. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties. The
specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The Nomination Committee comprises all INEDs, namely
Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen, Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and
Mr. NGAI Wai Kin and two executive Directors, namely
Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin and Ms. CHOI Ka Wing. Mr.
KITCHELL Osman Bin (chairman of the Company) is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. One meeting
was held during the Year to review the composition of
the Board. Number of attendance of the Nomination
Committee meeting is disclosed under the section headed
“Meeting Records” above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions, which includes developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements etc. During the Year, the Board
has reviewed the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s system
of internal controls and for reviewing their effectiveness
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the assets
of the Group. These internal controls are designed to
ensure the reliability of financial information for both
internal use and external publication and to provide
reasonable assurance against material statement or loss
and achievement of the Group’s objective.

During the Year, the Board reviewed and ensured the
internal control process had been properly carried out
in making the investment decision and adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting were
maintained properly. The Board satisfies that, given the size
and activities of the Company, adequate internal control
systems have been established and considers continuing
reviews of internal controls will be undertaken to ensure
its adequacy and effectiveness.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge its responsibility to prepare
the Group's financial statements for each financial period
to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.
The Board has selected Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance in preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
on a going concern basis. The Directors are responsibilities
for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities. The Directors must also keep
proper accounting records, which disclose, with reasonable
accuracy in a timely manner, the financial position of the
Group and the Company. The Directors must ensure that
the financial statements comply with accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the
Company on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 38.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Mazars CPA Limited was re-appointed as the auditor of
the Group at the annual general meeting held on 20
June 2012 and the Directors were authorised to fix their
remuneration. The remuneration paid/payable to Mazars
CPA Limited in respect of audit for the Year and non-
audit services during the Year were HK$410,000 and
HK$8,500 respectively (20711: HK$400,000 and HK$8,000
respectively).
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Investors

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency that Company’s website (www.unity913.com)
has been established as a means to communicate with
shareholders and investors.

The Board aims to ensure that its shareholders are kept
well informed of key business imperatives in a timely
and accurate manner. Extensive information about the
Company’s activities was provided in its annual report,
interim report, announcements and circulars.

The Board convened annual general meeting and other
general meetings as the principal channel to meet and
communicate with the shareholders of the Company.
Individual resolution in response to specific issues
(including proposals in relation to renewal continuing
connected transactions, rights issue and capital
reorganisation) had been put forward to shareholders of
the Company to consider at the general meetings during
the Year. In each general meeting held during the Year,
the Board had ensured that Tricor Tengis Limited, the
Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar, acted as scrutineer
in each occasion for all vote cast at the general meeting.

The chairman of the Company and the chairman of the
Board Committees were available to answer questions at
the annual general meeting held on 20 June 2012 and
extraordinary general meetings held on 20 January 2012,
2 February 2012 and 17 May 2012 respectively.

Constitutional Documents of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
has not made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company. An updated version of
the Company’s Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association is available on the website of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to Article 89 of the articles of association of the
Company, extraordinary general meeting shall be convened
on the written requisition of (i) any two or more members
of the Company; or (ii) any one member of the Company
which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee)
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong (Room 2206, 22nd Floor, China United Centre, 28
Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong) or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office (Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands)
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionist(s) held
as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the
date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to them by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 161 of the articles of association of
the Company, no person other a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is
given of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at
the head office (Room 2206, 22nd Floor, China United
Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong) or at
the registration office (Tricor Tengis Limited at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong) provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgment of such
notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting. Details of the procedures
for nomination of Directors for election are available on
the Company’s website at www.unity913.com.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who have enquiries about the shareholders’
rights or have enquiries to put to the Board may write to
the Company Secretary of the Company at the principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room 2206, 22nd Floor,
China United Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong
Kong. The Company will not normally deal with verbal
or anonymous enquiries. For the avoidance of doubt, the
shareholder(s) must provide their full name, contact details
and identification in order that the Company can give
them a reply.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y& N Az SRR

MAZARS

To the shareholders of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Unity Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 40 to 107, which comprise the consolidated and
the Company’s statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Mazars CPA LIMITED

B T vt T 7 PR A
42nd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y& N Az SRR

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y& N Az SRR

OPINION =R
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements RIZEMARLE  SAMBRREBIES S
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of BREEIEEFAFIHBE LR 200

the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012 H SgEER - ET——F+-_HA=+—H
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then TEHERRE SEEEEZBIEEEY
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting EELRESRE  WEIEBEE D TEN
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance THEHTE AR o

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited BEEeH EKAERA T
Certified Public Accountants BB AT

Hong Kong, 8 March 2013 EE —E—==A)/\R
Fung Shiu Hang BIKE

Practising Certificate number: P04793 MEFZEHRT - P04793
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EmiiamR

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE T —Ff+-_H=+—HIFFEF
2012 2011
“®-CF —T——F
Note HK$ HK$
izt il B
Turnover EXH 4 (2,005,477) (63,406,376)
Other revenue Hiolas 4 1,679,978 547,676
Other income HA A 5 1,640,000 2,391,416
Changes in fair value of listed equity $F<TJ““H’FD§E& Bz
investments classified under investments ks &QZQWE“
held for trading 3,982,364 (45,735,070)
Changes in fair value of unlisted debt BRBEGHRANEED
investments designated as at fair value ZFELMEBEE
through profit or loss AN =L - (13,000,000)
Impairment of listed equity investments BEARBERENE
classified under available-for-sale investments TSR EZRE (36,971,016) (91,881,944)
Realised loss on disposal of listed equity HERRARLERENE
investments classified under Z ETERRE
available-for-sale investments ZEEBER (38,781,423) (22,224,766)
Realised loss on disposal of unlisted equity HERBAHLERESE
investments classified under ZETTERRE
available-for-sale investments ZEERER - (1,218,332)
Gain on redemption of unlisted debt BEIHLERENE
investments classified under ZELTEBRE
available-for-sale investments ZEEW & - 1,526,250
Other operating expenses Hi S m Y (14,588,649) (11,785,069)
Finance costs BEHA 7 (1,187,788) (1,621,296)
Loss before tax BRELAIE B 7 (86,232,011) (246,407,511)
Income tax expense MEBRY 8 - _
Loss for the year attributable to ARRERSEAEL
equity holders of the Company FRER 9 (86,232,011) (246,407,511)
Other comprehensive income (loss) Ht2EKE (F8)
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHEREZ DA EE
investments (33,152,206) (159,771,356)
Realisation upon disposal of HEHNERERER
available-for-sale investments 38,781,423 23,443,098
Transfer to profit or loss upon impairment of R ERE LR R ER
available-for-sale investments BEZEEG 36,971,016 91,881,944
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year — FREMEEMNE () 42,600,233 (44,446,314)
Total comprehensive loss for the year KAREGIHE ARG
attributable to equity holders ERE2EEFR
of the Company (43,631,778) (290,853,825)
Restated
27
Loss per share - Basic and Diluted SRERE -EAREE 10 (0.58) (4.60)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fra MR

As at 31 December 2012
RZF——F+-_H=4+—H

2012 2011
—E——fF —ET——F
Note HKS$ HK$
orz3 B ki
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEREG 12(a) 2,091,573 314,828
Available-for-sale investments A HEELE 14 161,130,369 166,692,542
163,221,942 167,007,370
Current assets ﬁEﬂJﬁE
Financial assets at fair value BREREANE
through profit or loss SIEE 7 SR & E 15 68,753,877 90,143,081
Other receivables H fth e U Zx 17 353,596 1,596,149
Bank balances and cash RITEFELRAS 8,347,968 1,413,801
77,455,441 93,153,031
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals H R R
fEFHE A 356,367 1,661,384
Due to securities brokers 45 IR BSR4 7 IR - 22,864,546
Interest-bearing borrowing .d— B 18 - 50,000,000
356,367 74,525,930
Net current assets REBEESHE 77,099,074 18,627,101
NET ASSETS EEFE 240,321,016 185,634,471
Capital and reserves RAKGEE
Share capital A& 7 19 1,940,352 4,311,893
Reserves i 238,380,664 181,322,578
TOTAL EQUITY ApER 240,321,016 185,634,471
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of EB&HEFER_ZT—=F=A/\HILE
Directors on 8 March 2013. N RETEE o
KITCHELL Osman Bin CHOI Ka Wing
Director ERHE
- Director
EE
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Statement of Financial Position

BA ¥R 3=
As at 31 December 2012
R-F—ZF+=A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
Note HKS$ HK$
k=3 B ot
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N RE 12(b) 1,765,583 314,828
Interests in subsidiaries S SEENGIPA: 13 218,088,316 226,534,736
219,853,899 226,849,564
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BRABREALE
through profit or loss FIR 7 & R A = 15 11,884,409 7,685,069
Other receivables Hib el 17 339,027 1,595,023
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIRS 8,222,541 1,127,222
20,445,977 10,407,314
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H M EN R
JEEtE R 331,368 1,622,384
Interest-bearing borrowing FTREER 18 - 50,000,000
331,368 51,622,384
Net current assets (liabilities) REBEE (BE) BE 20,114,609 (41,215,070)
NET ASSETS EEFE 239,968,508 185,634,494
Capital and reserves AR EE
Share capital N 19 1,940,352 4,311,893
Reserves & 20 238,028,156 181,322,601
TOTAL EQUITY e 239,968,508 185,634,494

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 8 March 2013.

KITCHELL Osman Bin
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=IAN AN = — R
raiRe //HJE#E%
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-C-F —T——%F
Note HK$ HK$
Hiat B ok
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K
Cash used in operations 2B S 24 (11,513,907) (57,557,638)
Interest paid ERFLE (1,646,692) (1,162,392)
Net cash used in operating activities ## ¥ Fr F
HEERE (13,160,599) (58,720,030)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXRK
Acquisition of property, plant WHEMZ - &=
and equipment NE (2,312,619) (15,700)
Acquisition of available-for-sale WHERHEERE
investments (214,555,425) (161,197,800)
Proceeds from disposal of available- HEAHIDERE
for-sale investments ST/ CEl 186,965,392 157,935,457
Proceeds from redemption of fE[OI3E ETER
unlisted debt investments RE SRR - 5,126,250
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE KR
plant and equipment RIS IE - 1,380,000
Dividends received Frig iR & 1,679,092 502,308
Interest received P A& 3 44,565
Net cash (used in) from investing REZEK (FTH)
activities FrBRERHE (28,223,557) 3,775,080
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Proceeds from rights issue HRZ PSR 86,237,868 -
Proceeds from placement of shares TR ER () TS 008 17,786,560 2,550,000
Share issue expenses BITIRMD 2 X (5,706,105) (43,200)
New interest-bearing borrowing raised  ¥T{&sT B - 50,000,000
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowing E:E5H B &R (50,000,000) -
Net cash from financing activities METEFTE
REFRE 48,318,323 52,506,800
Net increase (decrease) in cash and HERBELZEEY
cash equivalents #gmORD) B8 6,934,167 (2,438,150)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNzHRER
beginning of year ReZEEY 1,413,801 3,851,951
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZEER
year end, represented by REEEY (2
bank balances and cash ABRTEERRE) 8,347,968 1,413,801
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e lRREREER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAREREEAEL
Investment Capital
Share Share revaluation  reduction Accumulated Total
capital  premium reserve reserve losses reserve Total
BA& ROGE REERRE HARTHE ZHER BERT &t
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B el ok o el E i
At 1 January 2012 WZE-—FE-f-H 4311893 461,570,664  (39,409,871) 346,585,489 (587,423,704) 181,322,578 185,634,471
Loss for the year Empg - - - - (86,232,011) (86,232,011) (86,232,011)
Changes in fair value of available-for- MHLERE 7 A EEE
sale investments - - (33,152,200) - - (33,152,206) (33,152,2006)
Realisation upon disposal of HEMELERERER
available-for-sale investments - - 38781423 - - 38,781,423 38781423
Transfer 1o profit or loss upon impairment WA HERE BB FER
of available-for-sale investments EREER - - 36971016 - - 36971016 36,971,016
Other comprehensive income for the year — EREM2 AN - - 42,600,233 - - 42,600,233 42,600,233
Total comprehensive loss for the year ER2EFELAE - - 42,600,233 - (86,232,011) (43,631,778) (43,631,778)
Issue of shares under rights issue REEREIRD 8,623,787 77,614,081 - - - 77614081 86,237,868
Issue of shares under placement RERERTRA 3339 17,463,168 - - - 17463168 17,786,560
Share issue expenses kO ER - (5,706,105) - - - (5,706,105  (5,706,105)
Creation of capital reduction reserve BERAEMAES
pursuant to the capital reorganisation ZEERAGEE (11,318,720) - - 11,318,720 - 11,318,720 -
Capital reduction reserve set off against RERAEEEBRE
accumulated losses pursuant to BERSZHEE
the capital reorganisation - - - (357,904,209) 357,904,209 - -
Total transactions with owners AREARREE (2,371,541) 89,371,144 - (346,585,489) 357,904,209 100,689,864 98,318,323
At 31 December 2012 RZB-ZE+ZA=1-H 1,940,352 550,941,808 3,190,362 - (315,751,506) 238,380,664 240,321,016
At 1 January 2011 RN-E——%-F-§ 426,893 459,148,864 5,036,443 346,585,489 (341,016,193) 469,754,603 473,981,496
Loss for the year Empg - - - - (246,407,511) (246,407511) (246,407,511)
Changes in fair value of available-for- MHLERE A EEE
sale investments - - (159,771,356) - - (159,771,356) (159,771,356)
Realisation upon disposal of HEMHELERERER
available-for-sale investments - - 23,443,098 - - 3443098 23,443,098
Transfer to profit or loss upon impairment WA HERE BB HER
of available-for-sale investments Er ey - - 91,881,944 - - 91,881944 91,881,944
Other comprehensive loss for the year ENEMZEER - - (44,446,314) - - (44,446,314) (44,446,314)
Total comprehensive loss for the year EnzaEELE - - (44,446314) - (246,407,511) (290,853,825) (290,853,825)
Issue of shares under subscription REZBRIRN 85,000 2,465,000 - - - 2465000 2,550,000
Share issue expenses BB - (43,200) - - - (43,200) (43,200)
Total transactions with owners HEEARHEE 85,000 2,421,800 - - - 2421800 2,506,800
At 31 December 2011 W-E—E+-A=t-H 4311,893 461,570,664 (39,409,871) 346,585,489 (587,423,704) 181,322,578 185,634,471
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Unity Investments Holdings Limited was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address
of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of this annual report. The
principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and principal activities of its subsidiaries
are detailed in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements also comply with applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2011 consolidated financial
statements. The adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs
that are relevant to the Group and effective from
the current year had no significant effects on
the Group’s results and financial position for the
current and prior years. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

l\‘/T\

CRELE T IE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HEr—ZF——

Ft_A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements is historical
cost, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale investments,
which are measured at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and all of
its subsidiaries as at 31 December each year. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting year as that of the Company
using consistent accounting policies.
All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceased.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

l\‘/T\

CRELE T IE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HEr—ZF——

Ft-_A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged
to the profit or loss during the year in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives
from the date on which they are available for
use and after taking into account their estimated
using the straight-line method, at
the annual rate of 33-1/3%. Where parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

residual values,

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset is included in profit or
loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEGHEE (&)
Financial instruments o =
Recognition and derecognition B R A 1L B

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date
basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only
when (i) the Group’s contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (ii) the
Group transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. A financial liability is derecognised
only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially
recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets or financial liabilities not carried at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are direct attributable to the acquisition or issue
of the financial assets or financial liabilities.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. They are carried at fair
value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in
profit or loss, which includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HEr—ZF——

Ft-_A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are (i) acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; (i) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are
not financial guarantee contracts or designated and
effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on a different basis; or (ii) they are
part of a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities that are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) they
contain embedded derivatives that would need to be
separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

The Group uses the Binomial Tree Pricing Model to
determine the fair value of debt investments that
are not traded in an active market. Differences may
arise between the fair value at initial recognition
which, in accordance with HKAS 39, is generally
the transaction price and the amount determined at
initial recognition using the valuation technique. Any
such differences are charged or credited to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HEr—ZF——

Ft_A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including bank balances
and cash and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market and are not
held for trading. They are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, except
where receivables are interest-free loans and
without any fixed repayment term or the effect of
discounting would be insignificant. In such case,
the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
over the year to maturity. Gains and losses arising
from derecognition, impairment or through the
amortisation process are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured
at fair value with changes in value recognised in
investment revaluation reserve which is a separate
component of equity until the assets are sold,
collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the
assets are determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
other comprehensive income shall be reclassified to
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
stated at cost less impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F1+-_A=4+—HIFE
2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether there is objective evidence that
financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are impaired. The impairment
loss of financial assets carried at amortised cost is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. Such impairment loss
is reversed in subsequent periods through profit
or loss when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired,
difference between its acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current

a cumulative loss comprising the

fair value, less any previously recognised impairment
loss in profit or loss,
to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in fair value of available-for-sale equity
instrument after recognition of impairment loss is
recognised in equity. Reversal of impairment loss
of available-for-sale debt instruments are reversed
through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of
the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss.

is reclassified from equity
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEGHEE (&)
Financial instruments (Continued) @I A (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (&)

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

ERARAFRzAIHEESRE
E REEEEHEATREEZKR
mEEZREUEREEZRITHSM
BERFBZGARKRERRERE
Rz Z% - BRREERTTELD -

AR ESRMEEMS -
BREA B8R

BMEZ

o  BITARYFTHBREEVR
2 3K

. Breach of contract, such as default or o EX - flanmHEAsk R A B K
delinquency in interest or principal payments; REER 3
or

. It becoming probable that the borrower will o [ERABHRMEISETHE

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

The impairment loss of financial assets carried
at amortised cost is measured as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flow
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——Ff+-_HA=1—HIFE
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEGHEE (&)
Financial instruments (Continued) S@MITE (&)
Financial liabilities THEE

The Group’s financial liabilities include other
payables and interest-bearing borrowings. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case
they are stated at cost.

AEBZERABESREMEMNTKL
AEER - TAERAERIRER
AEWR - BREAERN TR
RAGE TR ZFELIE
KRB EANZERARIER -

Cash equivalents REZEY

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash MEEEHeRERME F BEEEY
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly BRI BRRENRESERES
liquid investments which are readily convertible into ANEBEBZFEE 28 Hﬂm/m R
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an & o

insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition W = R

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that BRBEN A AR RmAER - M

the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably and on the following bases.

Net income from sale of investments held for trading
are recognised on the transaction date when the
relevant sale and purchase contract is entered into.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the

2.

FEEHHE (F)

HEERE
FAREER AR HREK ZEE Y
MRZRAREBECEBERERR L
g% (TEER]) &t 8 - AWK
HRIINBEZY] - BER/ARAZ

MR 2REE -

HINER GRS ARER ZEXRBRE
RNEEEE - BRI ER 5 MIRF
RIERBBIUINETECEREER
BEMELEZINERBNBD T HE

settlement of such transactions and from the o
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets FEMEERE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews internal and external sources of information
to determine whether its property, plant and
equipment have suffered an impairment loss or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
cost to sell and value in use. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a
cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset is capitalised as part of cost of that
asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme are recognised
as an expense in the profit or loss as incurred
and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independent administered
fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of each
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, if the deferred
tax arises from initial recognition of goodwill; or
other asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investment in subsidiaries except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties/connected parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the parent
of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEEFEE(E)
Related parties/connected parties (Continued) EHEEAL "BEAL (&)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y (#&)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit (v) EBRBAAEENHEAE
plan for the benefit of employees of EEHE ERHESR
either the Group or an entity related to Mm% 2 BB AE
the Group. If the Group is itself such a gl mMAEBERNGBAE
plan, the sponsoring employers are also R E - R éEﬂZ{E
related to the Group. FIREANEEFRE

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly (viy EEXQ@AM@ERIALT
controlled by a person identified in (a). Pl ek H RS

(viii A person identified in (a)(i) has (i) (@OAMFHANATHE
significant influence over the entity or BEEATENXEBEX
is a member of the key management ER (IZEBZER

personnel of the entity (or of a parent Al ZEEBEEKE -
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those — B ANT ZEHREK BETE A
family members who may be expected to influence, BERIRGPRATZEZATHEZA
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings THEIRENKE - B

with the entity and include:

ZBAANLTZTRERBARE

—~
QD
~

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner; B
(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic (b) ZEBEATZEBIREEHZ
partner; and TR
()  dependants of that person or that person’s (0 ZBATHZEBALTZERMBK
spouse or domestic partner. REBH KB -
In the definition of a related party, an associate E’\ﬁfﬁk/\iZE%ﬁF Hﬁ*%/\i
includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint FEHMEALTZHBA BEDRE
venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture. BiEE %ﬁ%ZW%
In addition, transactions with connected parties as gboh - BEEA LTRSS (RELT
defined under the Listing Rules are disclosed in the MAIRTE) RAFRIEFGMEA
Directors’ Report of this annual report. B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEEFEE(E)
Critical accounting estimates and judgement EEgTHETRAE

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and judgements are made by the management in the
preparation of the financial statements. They affect
the application of the Group's accounting policies,
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed
on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of
revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments
For available-for-sale investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in fair value below cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
Judgement is required when determining whether
a decline in fair value has been significant or
prolonged. In making this judgement, the historical
data on market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The
Group also takes into account financial information
regarding the issuers/investees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgement
(Continued)

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company assesses annually if investment
in subsidiaries has suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKAS 39 in determining whether amounts due
from those entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate
discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause
the adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Fair value estimation

The Group’s unlisted debt securities have been
valued based on the expected cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar
terms and risk characteristics, and taking into
consideration the volatility of the underlying asset
and duration to maturity. This valuation requires
the Group to make estimates about expected future
cash flows and discount rates, and hence they are
subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the unlisted
debt securities at the end of the reporting period
was HK$Nil (2011: HK$34,000,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

‘e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has
not early adopted.
Amendments to Presentation of items of other

HKAS 1 comprehensive income "

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements @
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures @
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements @
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests with

Other Entities @

Additional transition relief -
Consolidated financial statements,

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11,

HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements, Disclosures
of Interests with Other Entities @
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement @

ERMBREER

RREE

REETRESFHRETHHREZA

AEBETEEFRAELSITAE
ERMGERNFERRERZ NIE

TR RRERTRBMEIME LR o

BEEITEA
F1H 2B

BEGHERF19%
(ZF——%)

BEBIERE27HE
(ZE——%F)

BEEHERF28%
(ZF——%)

BB HHEER)
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BEH B IRE
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E129 2E7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

‘e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)
Amendments to First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
HKFRS 1 Financial Reporting Standards ¥
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine @

Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project -

2009-2011 Cycle @

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Disclosure - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities @

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Presentation - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities ©

Investment Entities — Amendments
to Separate Financial Statements,
Consolidated Financial Statements,

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011),
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
Disclosures of Interests with
Other Entities ¥

Financial Instruments @

HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9,
Financial Instruments, and
Transition Disclosure ®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CRELE T IE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F+-_A=1T—HIFE
3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued) 3.
m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2012
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015

The directors of the Company are in the process of

ERNKREEARRKEE (2)

M RZE——FEtA—HBxzEHA
162 FE AR A K

@ RZE—=F—-—H—BH2#EH
162 FE AR A K

@ RZZE—NFE—A—Bs %R
162 FE AR A K

@ RZE—RAF—H—BRZERH
162 FE AR A K

ARREFLAENERKRANZEFRN

assessing the possible impact on the future adoption ST R AV B REER 2]
of these new/revised HKFRSs, but are not yet in a Eg/ﬁf BRTEEEEEETRELHR
position to reasonably estimate their impact on the B BmERITE -
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
TURNOVER AND REVENUE 4. Ex@ERrB=m \
The Group is principally engaged in the investment K%Eg%ﬂ‘%ﬁ&ﬁim&#tﬁ
in listed and unlisted companies. Turnover and NE] - AFEEHRZERE RS
revenue recognised during the year are as follows: o
2012 2011
— —E——%F
HKS$ HK$
i ot
Turnover EE 2]
Loss from the sale of listed HEDHERBIEER
investments classified under BEZ LR EEE
investments held for trading (9,900,477) (63,406,376)
Gain from the sale of unlisted debt  $HERTINFERRE B
investments designated as at BREAREES 2
fair value through profit or ELEMEBERE
loss upon initial recognition FTiS Ut = 7,895,000 -
(2,005,477) (63,406,376)
Other revenue H itz
Interest income ) B U A 3 44,565
Dividend income from listed EHREZRERA
investments 1,679,092 502,308
Exchange gain b 5 U 2 883 803
1,679,978 547,676
Total revenue FEN g (325,499) (62,858,700)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

5. OTHER INCOME 5. HftikA
2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——F
HK$ HK$
B ok
Commission rebate from securities BHEL 2 A2EH
brokers 1,640,000 1,858,116
Gain on disposal of property, THEDE BEK
plant and equipment w2 W - 533,300
1,640,000 2,391,416
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZHEH
For the purpose of internal reporting, the Group AFZ2WMME - $'§.1§ﬁ ([FES
only has one business segment, namely, investments Boab BlEm NI EEMBEHFZ2&
in listed and unlisted securities. Business segment B HARAKBZEXERE - K& RN
information, which is the Group’s primary basis of ZER - BERBEHRENLE—
segment reporting, is not required as the Group's DEB - MBARMHEBDEHER (T
turnover, contribution to operating profit, assets and REEDH2MEFEERE) o
liabilities are attributable to this only segment.
Geographical information i & & K
The following table sets out information about the TRAENAEBRRZ » R(i)AEEKE
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue mBEE (2Rt T AR (THEEIE
and (i) the Group’s non-current assets other than MBEE]) B D& 2 & -
financial instruments (“specified non-current NEBPBEUR S 2 DR TIAR B
assets”). The geographical location from which the WEFE TS RELE  MEEIFRE
Group derives revenue is based on the location BEZME SR IIAEEZY TR
of the markets of the respective investments; and @A E L o
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset.
Specified
Revenues non-current assets
Wz BEXRBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
=B-ZfF % ZB-ZF —EF—F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Hong Kong BB (EEME)
(place of domicile) (325,499) (62,858,700) 2,091,573 314,828
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

7.  LOSS BEFORE TAX 7. BRBAIER
2012 2011
= —F—F
HKS$S HK$
This is stated after charging (crediting): &3 (5t A) : B ok
Finance costs L& R A
Other borrowings wholly repayable ARAFREEEER
within five years 2 B AR 1,187,788 1,621,296
Staff costs BT
Employee benefits expense, EERAMMAXZ
excluding directors’ remuneration BEE BRI 1,356,946 1,226,291
Contributions to defined REHRRETEIH
contribution plans 43,719 42,965
1,400,665 1,269,256
Other items HMEH
Auditor’s remuneration % SEM BN & 410,000 400,000
Depreciation e 535,874 1,249,327
Operating leases in FATI®EZ
respect of: RS -
office premises I YNES Y/ ES 855,786 903,144
hire of machinery THEHER 101,455 94,753
Disclosures pursuant to Rule B LEHRA
21.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules E21.12(1)()FRIEE
Realised loss on disposal of Hj’ijzﬁ&ﬁz
listed investments B # IR ES1E 48,681,900 85,631,142
Realised surplus on unlisted investments ;HEJ:m%y\éZ
238 Z g (7,895,000) (307,918)
Unrealised loss on listed investments EHREZAREH
B 32,988,652 137,617,014
Unrealised loss on unlisted investments  Jf EM#&E& 7 K&
HEE - 13,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE
TAXATION 8. BIg
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in the MR AEBR _ZT——FER_FT—
financial statements as the Group incurred losses for —FEEEHIEEE - R |EMTE
taxation purpose for the years 2012 and 2011. HREABBFE L EE -
Reconciliation of tax expense HIERA YR
2012 2011
—B—CF —F——%F
HKS$ HK$
it VB
Loss before tax BR 7% Al &S 18 (86,232,011)  (246,407,511)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of 1ZEAF EL16.5%
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) (ZF——F 1 16.5%)
HE 7B (14,228,282) (40,657,239)
Tax exempt revenue TMIAEA 2 Wan (970,087) (334,845)
Non-deductible expenses S AT IR 2 247,794 1,753,743
Unrecognised tax losses AERIEEE 14,970,176 39,082,177
Utilisation of previously B ABERERTIA
unrecognised tax losses E5i8 - (192,260)
Unrecognised temporary difference  RERGRZEZE (19,601) 348,424
Tax expense for the year FABIBRAZ - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F1+-_A=4+—HIFE
9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

10.

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the loss for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$86,232,011 (2071:
HK$246,407,511), a loss of HK$43,984,309 (2011:
HK$290,853,826) is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders
of HK$86,232,011 (2011: HK$246,407,511) and the
weighted average number of 148,088,798 (2011 as
restated: 53,607,571) ordinary shares in issue during
the year. The comparative amount of the basic loss
per share for 2011 had been adjusted to reflect the
impact of the rights issue and share consolidation
effected during the year.

As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares,
diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per
share in 2012 and 2011.

10.

ERAREBEFEABGFABR

RARRIRZFEAEBLEFAERE
& 86,232,011 (= & — — 4 -
B #246,407,511C) o B
43,984,309t BB (ZF——F -
JB#290,853,8267T) i AN AR 2
WIEMEREE o

BREE
EREREBEEDRBERAFERRZES
AFEMR A& B 518 45 %86,232,011
T (= F——14F : JBEI246,407,511
o) RAFECET LR 2 NE
15 80148,088,798/% (= &F — —F
(&%) : 53,607,5714%) 518 - —F
—— FEREARNEENLERETEE
EEk L\A}iﬁ%ﬁmﬁi\ﬂﬁ&aﬁﬁa’aﬂ&
MEHHTE

R-Z——FER-T——F  @RY
BEEEETRR  WEREEESE
LG RR BN EEMER o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 11. ESRESREBEAEME

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=M2
The aggregate amount of emoluments RAREFD W EY 2 &
received or receivable by the Company’s mEEw

directors were as follows:

2012
—E--F
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
Fe o 2ER BRGHE
2ok BNNE e At
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
Executive directors HITES
Kitchell Osman Bin Kitchell Osman Bin - 840,000 13,750 853,750
Chan Yin, David & - 540,000 13,750 553,750
Davis Angela Davis Angela
Hendricks Hendricks - 540,000 13,750 553,750
Choi Ka Wing B - 540,000 13,750 553,750
Independent non-executive  ¥F 3 IEHIT
directors ==
Chung Kong Fei, Stephen == 3 7R 120,000 - - 120,000
Tsang Wing Ki ok 120,000 - - 120,000
Ngai Wai Kin HIER 120,000 - - 120,000
360,000 2,460,000 55,000 2,875,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 11. EERSREBAEME (&)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EE#ME (&)
2011
2
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits scheme
fees in kind  contributions Total
e EZAR RIRETE
BT ENNE R CHI
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Executive directors HITES
Kitchell Osman Bin Kitchell Osman Bin - 810,000 12,000 822,000
Chan Yin, David EES - 328,065 7,653 335,718
Davis Angela Davis Angela
Hendricks Hendricks - 540,000 12,000 552,000
Choi Ka Wing BHRA - 480,000 12,000 492,000
Independent non-executive 3§ FEHL1T
directors =3
Chung Kong Fei, Stephen = 3 7R 120,000 - - 120,000
Tsang Wing Ki oK 120,000 - - 120,000
Ngai Wai Kin ER 120,000 - - 120,000
360,000 2,158,065 43,653 2,561,718

Wiat - RRRFMBRITEERTE
VUHEBITEEHAFEE
BAE  NAKXRRAR
BAL -FR WEESF
BEANTETHMRS
ZE——F ) o

Note: All executive directors and independent
non-executive directors of the Company are
the key management personnel, also related
parties, of the Company. During the year, no
other transactions with related parties have
taken place (2071: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 11. EERSHEEAEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Individuals with highest emoluments (b) EBEEHFMAL
Of the five individuals with highest AEERhEERFMALTH -
emoluments of the Group, four (2011: four) WE (ZFE——F: HAF) &
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed B EFWNREE I BmE
in note 11(a) to the consolidated financial E11(@) T - Hfp—R (=
statements. The aggregate of the emoluments E——F —F) AL 2HMH
in respect of the other one (2077: one) mEmn
individual is as follows:
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——%F
HK$ HK$
Salaries and other emoluments o N E b 3 B 660,000 576,000
Retirement scheme contributions IRPRET &R 13,750 12,000
673,750 588,000
Their emoluments were within the following WEZEHWMNFUTEHE :
band:
Number of employee
EEEH
2012 2011
—E-C=F —ET——%F
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 BEETEAEE
1,000,0007T 1 1
(c) Share options granted to the directors of () BFERATRESZERE

the Company

Under the share option scheme approved by
the shareholders of the Company on 2 May
2003 (the "Option Scheme”), the directors
of the Company may grant options to those
participants who, in the opinion of the Board,
have contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group and
any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest. During the year, no share
options were granted to the directors. Details
of the Option Scheme are disclosed in note 21
to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. V¥ - BEREE
(a) Group (a) ZA£E
Leasehold Office Furniture Motor
improvements  equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
RENELEE BLERE HGRREE nE &%
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS
B s B il B
Reconciliation of carrying  HZ=Z——F+=7
amount - year ended Z+-ALFE
31 December 2011 BRI {2 $K
At 1 January 2011 W-E-——£-f-H 428950 177,593 27,113 1,761,499 2,395,155
Additions NE - 15,700 - - 15,700
Depreciation & (223,800) (90,693) (20,035) (914,799)  (1,249,327)
Disposaliwritten off, net  HE& /#ih - - - - (846,700)  (846,700)
At 31 December 2011 WZE——%F+-f
=t+-H 205,150 102,600 7,078 - 314,828
Reconciliation of carrying B#Z-F-—F+=f
amount - year ended =t-ALEE
31 December 2012 REEZHE
At 1 January 2012 R-E-—F—-f—-H 205,150 102,600 7,078 - 314,828
Additions NE 1,587,475 102,958 217,509 404,677 2,312,619
Depreciation & (337,440) (96,211) (23,536) (78,687) (535,874)
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—&+_RA
=t+-H 1,455,185 109,347 201,051 325,990 2,091,573
At 1 January 2012 RZE--F-A—-H
Cost KA 671,400 395,852 174,315 3,737,025 4,978,592
Accumulated depreciation  Z;H{TE (466,250) (293,252) (167,237) (3,737,025  (4,663,764)
205,150 102,600 7,078 - 314,828
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—&+-A
=t-H
Cost R 2,258,875 423,592 274,189 4,141,702 7,098,358
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTE (803,690) (314,245) (73,138)  (3,815,712)  (5,006,785)

1,455,185 109,347 201,051 325990 2,091,573
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HEr—ZF——

Ft_A=1—HIFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 12.

(b)

M- BERRE (&)

Company (b) ARFH
Leasehold Office Furniture
improvements  equipment and fixtures Total
HENELE BLERE BRAREE CE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Reconciliation of carrying  HZ2ZT——%+_A
amount - year ended ST-ALLFE
31 December 2011 EEWEZ%T@E
At 1 January 2011 “T—%—-A—H 428,950 177,593 27,113 633,656
Additions ,?J%g - 15,700 - 15,700
Depreciation e (223,800) (90,693) (20,035) (334,528)
At 31 December 2011 nZE—%F+ZHA
=+—H 205,150 102,600 7,078 314,828
Reconciliation of carrying HEZ=-F—-=-F+=H
amount - year ended =t+-HILEE
31 December 2012 IREE 2 iR
1 January 2012 c——F—H—H 205,150 102,600 7,078 314,828
Additions NE 1,587,475 102,958 217,509 1,907,942
Depreciation e (337,440) (96,211) (23,536)  (457,187)
At 31 December 2012 R-BE-——E+=8
=t+-H 1,455,185 109,347 201,051 1,765,583
1 January 2012 R-E——%—H—H
Cost YA 671,400 395,852 174,315 1,241,567
Accumulated depreciation  23HTE (466,250) (293,252) (167,237) (926,739)
205,150 102,600 7,078 314,828
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z-H+=A
=+-H
Cost YA 2,258,875 423,592 274,189 2,956,656
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HITE (803,690) (314,245) (73,138)  (1,191,073)
1,455,185 109,347 201,051 1,765,583
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13. RMBARZRER
Company
¥/
2012 2011
—E-C—fF —ET——%F
HK$ HK$
B ot
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRG - RECAR
At 1 January and —A—BEk+=A
31 December =+—H 25 25
Due from subsidiaries JE W Ff B8 2 R FIR 994,441,946 968,874,978
Provision for doubtful debts ~IRE G (776,353,655)  (742,340,267)
218,088,291 226,534,711
Total &t 218,088,316 226,534,736
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, RIS B A RFIBEAEIEE 28K

interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

EIETEER -
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BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

RHBAR 2R (&)
RZEBE——F+-_A=+—HHEAAR
AEFA B ARFBNT

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13.
The following is a list of the details of the
subsidiaries held by the Company at 31 December

2012:

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation

and type of legal entity

Principal activities

Particulars Proportion of nominal
of issued value of issued capital

share capital

held by the Company

LA O 3t B ARAMBCRT
o) SR EEERER IEXK ERTRFFEE RAEE LA

Directly  Indirectly

B# Vit

Ample Spring International ~ The British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
Limited limited liability company of US$1 each

HRERERRF RBRAES RERK 1R EREE 100% -
BEREERA 1R BB

Anchor Talent Limited The British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
limited liability company of US$1 each

Anchor Talent Limited EBRAHS RAEER 1REREE 100% -
BREERA 1ETZ BRI

Gedaulia Investments The British Virgin Islands, ~ Investment holding 1 ordinary share - 100%
Limited limited liability company of US$1 each

Gedaulia Investments RBRAES RERR 1R EREE - 100%
Limited BREEAF (B A3

Great Panorama The British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share - 100%
International Limited limited liability company of US$1 each

Great Panorama EBRAHE REER 1REREE - 100%
International Limited BREFEAT [EPA 3l

Gufalore Investments The British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
Limited limited liability company of US$1 each

Gufalore Investments RERNES REZRR 1R EREE 100% -
Limited BREERT (Eyas 1

Pacific Kingdom The British Virgin Islands, ~ Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
International Limited limited liability company of US$1 each

Pacific Kingdom RBRUAMS REER RERAEE 100% -
International Limited BREERAR [EA 3l

Triumph Way Limited Hong Kong,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
limited liability company of HK$1 each

BiaARAA ik wEER 1REREERS 100% -
BAREFEAR 17T Bk

Visionary Limited The Cayman Islands, Dormant 1 ordinary share - 100%
limited liability company of US$1 each

Visionary Limited FERS EEe¥ 1R GREE - 100%
AREELA [EwA 3L
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 14. THHERE
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E—-—F —E——F
Note HK$ HK$
k23 B ket
Equity investments, RERE
at fair value BARE
Listed in Hong Kong EEE LT 14(b) 155,130,369 160,692,542
Equity investments, at cost REHRE - BEHRA 14(c)
Unlisted in Hong Kong EEBIFLET 6,000,000 36,058,300
Impairment loss REEE 14(d) - (30,058,300)
6,000,000 6,000,000
Total &5t 161,130,369 166,692,542

A-REBBARLT 2012 5% 75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued) 14. THHERE (&)

(@) As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount (a)
of the Group’s interest in the shares or
underlying shares in the following Hong Kong
listed companies exceeded 10% of the total
assets of the Group.

WNZE—=—F+=_A=+—
B REERUTEBSLTA
AZRHOKBEROPES
ZHEEEBAAEBRBAEEY
10% °

Proportion of

nominal value
Particulars of issued
Place of of issued capital held
Name incorporation Principal activities share capital by the Group
FEEMBERT
L AMAL Y TERE ERTRARE AAXACKAEND
Chinese Estates Bermuda Property investment and  Ordinary share of 0.19%
Holdings Limited development, brokerage, HK$0.10 each
securities investment, money
lending and cosmetics
distribution and trading
EAEREERRAR BRE  DERERERE  SERS - ERREREE 0.19%
BARE - MERMEREDH#H 50,107
PELES
CST Mining Cayman Islands Acquisition, exploration, ~ Ordinary share of 1.00%
Group Limited development and mining of HK$0.10 each
copper and other mineral
resources minerals, property
investment and investments
in financial instruments
PREXEEFRAT AEHsE  WE R FERREIR EEREREE 1.00%
HEBREER  NERE H0.107T
RERIAREXHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued) 14. THHERE (&)
(b) (b)

Group
rEH
2012 2011
—F—= —_ET—F
HKS$ HK$
B T
Market value of equity REBE LMERES
securities listed in ZT{A
Hong Kong 155,130,369 160,692,542
Fair value of individually &R HIRBE
impaired available-for-sale A EEREE Y
equity securities NIRIEL 12,211,082 79,078,226

At the end of the reporting period, certain
of the Group’s available-for-sale equity
securities were individually determined to
be impaired on the basis of a significant or
prolonged decline in their fair value below
cost which indicated that the cost of the
Group’s investment in these items may not
be recovered. Impairment losses on these
investments were recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair value information has not been disclosed
for these equity investments because the
instruments are unlisted and their fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group
intends to hold these investments on a
long-term basis.

REMEERE - AEEET
AN EREEEFENEETE
HIREE - BEARBEKRIESK
REERKNAE @ RTAEE
TZEBEE CIRE G EEE
WE e ZEREZBERBED
BIRER G I Ik M sE2 it
LETBURRT ABR o

HRZETASARBELTHE
/Aﬁﬁﬂ i ?“ﬂﬂ.ﬁrg © UK

BaREZRAE
B e ZK%IT RHBE%TE
"E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B

For the year ended 31 December 2012

l\‘/T\

HEr—ZF——

14.

AR M T

Ft_A=1—HIFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Provision for diminution in value on unlisted
equity investments

(d)

14.

AHEHERE (&)

(d)

FEMERRERERE

2012
—E-—F
Effective Classification
shareholding Recoverable Impairment of financial
interest Cost amount loss assets
ERKRE BA  ARERE  REESSR tREESE
HK$ HK$ HK$
(i) HEC Capital Limited ("HEC") 0.14% 6,000,000 6,000,000 - Available-for-sale

HEC Capital Limited ([HEC )

A E

During the year, Hennabun and their
shareholders entered into a share swap
arrangement with HEC, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
pursuant to which the parties agreed
to undergo the reorganisation through
the allotment and issue of new shares
of Hennabun indirectly to HEC in
exchange for shares in HEC and to
cancel the old shares of Hennabun.
Upon the completion of the share
swap transaction, the Group held 0.2%
(diluted to approximately 0.14% as
at 31 December 2012) equity interest
in HEC and ceased to hold any equity
interest in Hennabun. The principal
activities of HEC are provision of
financial services, trading of investment
and property investment.
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® % A Hennabun
H A% BEHEC (— M %
F'aﬁ HEEMEKLZ
NA) B RR & HE
TJ%Jtt’ HESE= W N
ETEH FEBE
MHECH: #& K %% 17 ¥
Hennabunft 7 # EX
HECHR fp + W 3 88 &
Hennabunfg 1 o R #
BRGTEHE @ AEE
FF BHECZ0.2% (A =
T——F+A=+—

H#58 % 40.14%) |
KEZR MABEA
HennabunfE fa] A% 7 #&

HmoHECZEBEXEHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT_A=1—HIFE

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued) 14. THEERE (&)
(d)  Provision for diminution in value on unlisted (d) JELMERIEERERE (&)
equity investments (Continued)

2011
—E——F
Effective Classification
shareholding Recoverable  Impairment of financial
interest Cost amount loss assets
BRARE A RAIMEFE REEE TREENE
HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B
Hennabun Capital Group Limited 0.26% 31,000,000 6,000,000 25,000,000 Available-for-sale
("Hennabun”)
Hennabun Capital Group Limited At E
([Hennabun])
CSN Group Holdings Limited 0.49% 5,058,300 - 5,058,300 Available-for-sale
CSN Group Holdings Limited A HE
36,058,300 6,000,000 30,058,300
The recoverable amount has been assessed by AU EIFRIB Th AR B E F 4K
the directors of the Company with reference DEWIRE RN E 2 &G
to latest available financial information of the BB BHE RS -

investee companies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN Erd N

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——FfT _A=1—HIFE

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15.

PROFIT OR LOSS

ERESRAREIRZEHMEE

Group Company
FEE VAN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--f —T——% CZB--f —T——F
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Hrat B B B B
Held for trading BIEEE
Equity investments IR E
Listed in Hong Kong ~ H&/& LT 56,869,468 48,458,012 - -
Listed overseas o £ 11,884,409 7,685,069 11,884,409 7,685,069
68,753,877 56,143,081 11,884,409 7,685,069
Designated upon DIPR A
initial recognition &% 15(a)
Debt investments BEBERE
Unlisted in EEBIELD
Hong Kong - 34,000,000 - -
Total &% 68,753,877 90,143,081 11,884,409 7,685,069
Note: Bt -
(@)  The debt investments are unlisted convertible notes/ (a) REEBEREDEBLMRAE
bonds issued by listed companies in Hong Kong. AZIE LT EE EE -
As each of the convertible notes/bonds contains A T 0 B 2 4
an embedded derivative, the entire notes/bonds ?iiii;g?iﬂg/ B%}?ﬁ?
meet the criteria to be designated as financial 1’2/\ %Ai Y f
assets at fair value through profit or loss. All debt FHREBEBBRLAAEED
investments have been disposed in 2012. REMEEZIGNL - IEBEHR
BER_T—_FHE-
16. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO 16. REHE
Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule B FEBE21 121828 T &
21.12 of the Listing Rules, the Group discloses: EEERE
(@)  provision for diminution in value on other (a) HMIREREBERE WHREFE

investments as disclosed in note 14(d) to the
consolidated financial statements; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Are SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _F——F1_H=1—HIFE

16.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued) 16. REMAE (&)
(b) its ten largest investments and all individual by RNEBZTAREERSIHEIBIB
mvestmen’ts with value exceeding 5% of REE N R RELE R > BE
the Group s .gross.asset.s at the. er\d of the EE500 > B A5 18 5148 4 8 51 41
reporting period with brief description of the T R B AR A
investee companies as follows: = MR B A S5 T
RARRER
Top ten investments TARE
2012 —EB-CF
Unrealised Dividend
Market value holding received/
Effective Cost as at as at gain (loss) receivable Classification
Number of ~ shareholding 31 December 31 December arising on during of financial
Name of investee company shares held interest 2012 2012 revaluation the year assets
H-%-2F8 R-F-ZF  EfRBELZ
tZAZ+-B fZA=t-B  AEEER  ERER/
FREARER FrERH#E ERRE ZHA ZhE  WE (B8 EhRE SREERS
HKS HKS HKS HKS$
(i) Chinese Estates Holdings Limited 3,665,000 0.19% 45,041,500 47,938,200 2,896,700 73,300 Availab\e-for-sal\e
()  EAEZEEARAA A g
(i) CST Mining Group Limited 271,771,961 100% 29,894,916 29,351,372 (543,544) - Availab\e-for-salye
i) FREREEARAT e
(iiiy  Dragonite International Limited 10,010,000 9.45% 9,661,880 19,719,700 10,057,820 - Held for trading
(i) 2REBERAA RFEE
(iv)  Enterprise Development Holdings Limited 61,231,600 417% 14,475,150 14,083,268 (391,882) - Available-for-sale
() CEERERAR AHE
() The Cross-Harbour (Holdings) Limited 2,000,000 0.54% 12,000,000 12,900,000 900,000 - Availab\e-for-sal\e
Vv ERERERAG e
(vi)  Willie International Holdings Limited 11,000,000 8.77% 11,550,000 12,100,000 550,000 - Availab\e-for-salye
(V)  FRERERERAR e
(vii)  Pacific Century Regional 11,000,00 036% 21,121,548 11,884,409 (9,237,139) - Held for trading
Developments Limited
Vi) BMENERARAA HEEE
(vili) - Poly Capital Holdings Limited 102,215,170 345% 26,402,048 11,856,960 (14,545,088) - Held for trading
(i) REEFERERAT REEE
(i) Heritage International Limited 19,575,869 1.04% 38,962,974 10,179,452 (28,783,522) - Held for trading
(i) EEERERAA RFEE
() Esprit Holdings Limited 902,250 0.05% 7,556,270 9,690,165 2,133,895 - Available-for-sale

() BERRERARLE

A&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
r e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F 1+ -_HA=1—HIFE
16. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued) 16. BREHE (&)
Top ten investments (Continued) TREE (&)
2011 —T——%F
Market value/ Unrealised Dividend
fair value holding received/
Effective Cost as at as at gain (loss) receivable Classification
Number of  shareholding 31 December 31 December arising on during of finandial
Name of investee company shares held interest 2011 201 revaluation the year assets
W-E—-F  WZF-F EiBELL
tZA=+-B tZAZt-B REBER  EREkR/
FRELNAIAHE R %E ER e A zmE/DRE W (BB RS SHEEER
HKS HKS HKS HKS
B B e e
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited 3,665,000 0.19% 45,041,500 45,812,500 771,000 73,300 Available-for-sale
EAEXEEERAT AfRHE
Mascotte Holdings Limited 150,000,000 3.28% 60,000,000 34,500,000 (25,500,000) - Available-for-sale
SHESEERAT AfNE
Rising Development Holdings Limited 35,000,000 2.52% 59,500,000 33,950,000 (25,550,000) - Available-for-sale
BREEERERLT e
Rising Development Holdings Limited Not applicable ~ Not applicable 10,000,000 10,000,000 - - Designated as fair
(unlisted convertible notes) ik ik value through
ERSERRERLRT G LTATRRRE) profit or loss
FRBERLLEER
Heritage International Holdings 186,853,102 284% 47,064,586 24,477,756 (22,586,830) - Held for trading
Limited IEEE
EEARARLE
Forefront Group Limited 141,358,696 3.87% 16,817,587 14,418 587 (2,399,000) - Held for trading
BHERERLRA BERE
ICube Technology Holdings Limited Not applicable  Not applicable 17,000,000 14,000,000 (3,000,000) - Designated as fair
(unlisted convertible bonds) TEH TEH value through
HEHETRREBERAT profit or loss
(FrmamakEs) FABERD BRI
Oriental Ginza Holdings Limited 32,765,000 0.75% 43,100,161 11,959,225 (31,140,936) - Available-for-sale
RAREERERAE e
China Strategic Holdings Limited 71,686,666 1.94% 19,809,151 11,039,746 (8,769,405) - Available-for-sale
PREBERATA e
Hong Kong Life Group Holdings Not applicable ~ Not applicable 20,000,000 10,000,000 (10,000,000) - Designated as fair
Limited (unlisted convertible honds) il el value through
BEEREEARERAT GELTTAREE) profit or loss

BARRRLA BN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2012

/T\

EE_

16.

T —A=1—HILFE

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Top ten investments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese
Estates”) was incorporated in Bermuda and the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 127). Chinese Estates
is principally engaged in property investment and
development, brokerage, securities investment,
money lending and cosmetics distribution and
trading. For the financial year ended 31 December
2012, the audited consolidated profit attributable
to equity holders of Chinese Estates was
HK$9,820,516,000 with basic and diluted earnings
per share of HK$5.135. As at 31 December 2012,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to
the equity holders was HK$45,546,522,000.

CST Mining Group Limited (“CST Mining”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 985). CST Mining is principally
engaged in acquisition, exploration, development
and mining of copper and other mineral resources
minerals, property investment and investments in
financial instruments. For the financial year ended
31 March 2012, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to equity holders of CST Mining was
US$70,074,000 with basic and diluted loss per
share of US0.26 cents. As at 31 March 2012, its
audited consolidated net assets attributable to the
equity holders was US$889,401,000.

16.

REHES (&)
TARE (&)

Bz

(i)

(i)

EABEEEARQAA([EAE
¥|) RBERESMRT - HRED
REERFTER 2T (B H R -
127)c FEABEEFTEREYE
WENBER KRS BFH5HK
A oE pEEEEASR -
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—H
IEHBEE ZEABXEEEFS
ANEHRBZER RN BB
9,820,516,0007T * FAREA K&
SEAMNABES 135 e RZT—
—F+ZA=1+—H EAEZE
BRFEARLCERREEE
SRE BB 45,546,522,0007T °

PREZSEBEARAE ([FRE
2D AHEEEFMKY - &
By B X BT EAR £ (B9 1R
88 :085)c ARIMBETEN =W
B WIPR - P TR R H A
BEAR MERERSHMIA
RE%(B - BHE-_ZT——F=A8
=+ —HIEMBFE hPREE
BmFE ANBLEEZEEER
/70,074,000 70 - FREAR
BEEBAR026ED N -T —
—“FZARZ=Z1+—8 PRUBEE
HREAEBOEERGAEEF
{8/5889,401,0003E 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2012

m

EE_

16.

T —A=F—HILFE

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Dragonite International Limited (“Dragonite
International”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 329). Dragonite
International is principally engaged in production
and sale of health care products, pharmaceutical
products and RUYAN atomizing cigarettes. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2011,
the audited consolidated loss attributable to
equity holders of Dragonite International was
HK$314,081,000 with basic loss per share of
HK14.51 cents. As at 31 December 2011, its
audited consolidated net assets attributable to the
equity holders was HK$235,852,000.

Enterprise Development Holdings Limited
("Enterprise Development”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1808). Enterprise Development is principally
engaged in providing integrated business software
solutions, and manufacture and sale of bare
copper wires and magnet wires. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2011, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
Enterprise Development was RMB10,923,000 with
basic and diluted earnings per share of RMBO0.01.
As at 31 December 2011, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
RMB29,785,000.
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16.

REHES (&)
TARE (&)
fet - (48)

(iii)

(iv)

2EBBARLAA ([2EBE]D
RASESTEMKY  EBRH
REERZFrER £ (B D RS
329) c 2REBBETERELEE
MHERER R kUEFL
E-HE-_T——F+=-A=+
—HUEFEBRFE  SREEES
BEABRLEEZEABRAS
#314,081,0007T + HFlRENEE
BEE1451L e R=ZF——F+
“A=Z+—H 2EEBERIF
EARGKEZGAGEETES
78#235,852,0007T °

TrRERAR AR ((HREZER])
RESEEEMRY ERHG
REEZFTER B (RGO R
1808) - PRIER T EH FRM
RAERMERMFTR REERH
ERMERBEWBRZES - HE
—E——F+ZA=+—HIH

BEE tCRERESZEAEA
FBEKEZEEGENRBARE

10,923,0007T * AR K E#E
BHMAARKOIT  R-2ZT—
—F+-—A=+—8 tERER
BB EARNEERREEE
E(E A ARE29,785,0007T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2012

m

EE_

16.

T —A=1—HILFE

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

v)

The Cross-Harbour (Holdings) Limited (“Cross-
Harbour (Holdings)”) was incorporated in Hong
Kong and the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
32). Cross-Harbour (Holdings) is principally
engaged in motoring school operations, tunnel
operations, electronic toll operation and treasury.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011,
the audited consolidated profit attributable to
equity holders of Cross-Harbour (Holdings) was
HK$238,515,000 with basic and diluted earnings
per share of HK$0.65 and HK$0.64 respectively.
As at 31 December 2011, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$3,011,858,000.

Willie International Holdings Limited (“Willie
International”) was incorporated in Hong Kong and
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 273). Willie
International is principally engaged in property
investment, investment in securities trading, money
lending and investment holding. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2011, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of Willie International was HK$552,298,000 with
basic and diluted loss per share of HK$1.63. As
at 31 December 2011, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$1,792,583,000.

16.

REHES (&)
TARE (&)
fiet - (48)

v)

(vi)

BRITERAER AR ([BBEEK])
REBEME  EROPEER
FrEtR Em (BRMHARI:32)
BEEREIENEERESE - K
EEE BTWBEERER-
HzEz-_2——F+=-A=+—8
IHHBRFEE  BERIERERSER
ANELEBRZEA RN ABBE
238,515,0007T © & & & A K #
SERAR D P ABEE.655T LB

064TT - M_ZT——F+_-A
—t+—H - EBIEREZEAA

BIERERGREEAEFERER
3,011,858,0007T °

BB R AR AT ([ FE
%DW%%&ﬁﬁi H & m
ABE R FTEMR BT (AR5 K5 -
Nw EFEBREENEWER
Z BERXPGERE HMEREKEA
pR-#HE-—_Z——F+_-A=
+—HIEFRFE - BB
HREAELCRERGEEER
7 #552,298,0007T © BAXEAR KL
BEEEAEEI63T  RZF
——E+-A=+—0" BM=A
RRERFBABLCEZES?
R E A8 11,792,583,0007T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2012

m

EE_

16.

T —A=F—HILFE

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Pacific Century Regional Developments Limited
("Pacific Century”) is a Singapore-based company
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Limited (SES: P15). Pacific Century has interests in
telecommunications and media, financial services
and property and infrastructure investment and
development in the Asia-Pacific region. Pacific
Century’s most significant investment is its stake
in Hong Kong-listed PCCW Limited (SEHK: 8;
American Depositary Receipts on the OTC Markets
Group Inc. in the US: PCCWY). For the financial
year ended 31 December 2012, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
of Pacific Century was $SG$40,465,000 with basic
and diluted earnings per share of SG1.307 cents.
As at 31 December 2012, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
$G$732,183,000.

Poly Capital Holdings Limited (“Poly Capital”)
was incorporated in Bermuda and the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1141). Poly Capital is
principally engaged in supply and procurement
of metal minerals, pharmaceutical products,
provision of finance and securities investment.
For the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the
audited consolidated loss attributable to equity
holders of Poly Capital was HK$467,851,000 with
basic and diluted loss per share of HK38.34 cents.
As at 31 March 2012, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$1,199,742,000.
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16.

REHES (&)
TARE (&)
fet - (48)

(vii)

(viii)

BETMNERAER AR (AR D
MER ) B—RBEIA I
HAE - REIEESR ST E
m(FRZFr:P15) - AR EiMiE
REETAMENEEREE -
SRR WA M BRI
ZEHMAENER ARENER
SAEEEMRENBENES
MAREMERBR AR (B
BEAFT 1 8 AEBRTELESNE
K AEOTC Markets Group Inc. (35
IR ZWE) BEE  PCCWY) )
X -HE-_ZT——F+-A=
+—HIEFRFE - BEEME
REZFAABMNEEZRE &
H| A&40,465,000%1 N T - B
EARREERF BN IT1.307
WeR=ZF—=F+=ZRA=+—
H #EaFEABGEEZERE
& FE ¥ {E 5732,183,000%7 i1 3
5T o

REBXRIZERERAR ([REE
K]) RBEREFMAL - EiR D
REEZ TR £ (R DR
1141) c REEREENEMHE
LBESBRE  R% - ZHE
FREHEE BHEZT—-F
“A=+—BLMBRTFE  RAE
é%%ﬁé%ﬁ/\mﬂ@ﬁ%?é
&5 18 & 76 #467,851,0007T
BEARLEEEIEA38.3481 -
RZE—Z—F=A=+—H" 'R
EEAEZFTE ARGEEZE
BEEFEAB1,199,742,000
5T o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2012

m

EE_

16.

T —A=1—HILFE

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ix)

Heritage International Holdings Limited (“Heritage
International”) was incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 412). Heritage International
is principally engaged in property investment,
investments in securities, money lending and
investment holding and Chinese medicine clinic
operations. For the financial year ended 31 March
2012, the audited consolidated loss attributable
to equity holders of Heritage International was
HK$368,077,000 with basic and diluted loss per
share of HK$0.09. As at 31 March 2012, its audited
consolidated net assets attributable to the equity
holders was HK$1,013,874,000.

Esprit Holdings Limited (“Esprit Holdings”) was
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
330). Esprit Holdings is principally engaged in
wholesale and retail distribution and licensing of
quality fashion and lifestyle products designed. For
the financial year ended 30 June 2012, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
of Esprit Holdings was HK$873,000,000 with
basic and diluted earnings per share of HK$0.68.
As at 30 June 2012, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$15,606,000,000.

16.

REHES (&)
TARE (&)
Hiet - (&)

(ix)

EETRAER AR ([EEZK])
FﬁELI%WL Hm R
B 2P E MR £ (& K58

412) o BEERFEREWER
B BHERE HEREEER
URHERREL HE_ZT—
THEZA=+—BLUBREE -

BEEHIEBRERFTEABRGLSRE

Z iR A B 18 & 78 368,077,000
L BREARREEEE A0.09
Br - R-_E—=—F=ZA=+
—HB 2EEREZEBAR
EEEBERERAEEFEABE
1,013,874,0007T °

BEREREXZERBR AR (B
RE)) phaREFMAY - &
BB FTER ET (BRHAR
5% :330) BRRHRETEN =S
BEKXEAFRKE R
B CZEEDHEHIMEEERE
BeBE_E——HXA=1H
IR EE S BRERBENEERDF
EABNEEZERE RN BEY
873,000,0007T * HRERREE
BHEB06SETL R_E—F
ANA=Z+TH BREREDZRES
A%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁéé%@@%@
#15,606,000,0007C °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M
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17. OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. HtEWR
Group Company
rEH ¥ /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B——-F _—_T——% ZB-ZH —T——%F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B it g B B
Deposits and we RIERK
prepayments 353,596 1,596,126 339,027 1,595,000
Due from securities JEWRE S48
brokers - 23 - 23

353,596 1,596,149 339,027 1,595,023

18. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING 18. & EMEX
The borrowing in 2011 represented a revolving —E-—FEFERE —HBELRE
loan facility obtained from an independent finance RAZBRERRE B LRAL
company of up to HK$50 million with interest rate at #50,000,0007C * FH&E5% - &g
5% per annum and the final repayment date within EFRAHRENIENZEEZRNA
3 months from the date of drawing appearing on FLRMAEF=EAN - BRATHE
the first notice of drawing. The amount was repaid ERZE——F-AZHEE-

in full in February 2012.

88 ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Unity Investments Holdings Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I\‘/—.I_\

CRELE T IE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BEr —F——F+ - H=+—HIFE
19. SHARE CAPITAL 19. KX
Number of
ordinary
shares of
HK$0.01 each Nominal value
BREE
BI0.01T2
EERE HE
Note HK$
st B
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2011, R-Z2-—-%-A-B>
31 December 2011 and 2012 —E--ER-E--F
+=ZA=+—-H 200,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRARE
At 1 January 2011 R-E——%F—Hf—H 422,689,338 4,226,893
Issue of shares under subscription BEREETRG 8,500,000 85,000
At 31 December 2011 and nZE——%F+ZH
1 January 2012 e = e e
—H—H 431,189,338 4,311,893
Issue of shares under rights issue BB M7 D (i) 862,378,676 8,623,787
Share consolidation BinE B (i) (1,131,872,013) -
Capital reduction CINE (ii) (11,318,720)
Issue of shares under placement BIBEERTRD (iif) 32,339,200 323,392
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—F+=-A=+—H 194,035,201 1,940,352
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19. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

At the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 20 January 2012, an ordinary
resolution was passed for the issue of 862,378,676
rights shares at a price of HK$0.10 each to
qualifying shareholders on the basis of two rights
shares for every share held on 6 February 2012. The
rights issue was completed on 27 February 2012.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 17 May 2012, a special
resolution in respect of capital reorganisation,
including share consolidation of the issued shares
and capital reduction were approved by the
shareholders of the Company. The capital reduction
was approved by the Grand Court of the Cayman
Islands on 9 August 2012 (Cayman Islands time)
and became effective after 4:00 p.m. on 17 August
2012, details of which were as follows:

(a) share consolidation of every eight
issued shares of HK$0.01 each into one
consolidated share of HK$0.08 each
("Consolidated Share”);
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EE_

T —A=1—HILFE

19. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

(b) reduction in paid up capital of each
Consolidated Share from HK$0.08 each
to HK$0.01 each by cancelling paid-up
capital to the extent of HK$0.07 on each
Consolidated Share so as to form a new
share of HK$0.01 each. Based upon the
number of shares in issue as at the effective
date, the issued share capital of the
Company changed from HK$12,935,680
consisting of 1,293,568,014 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$1,616,960
consisting of 161,696,001 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each; and

(0) the credit amount of HK$11,318,720 arising
from the capital reduction referred to in note
(i) (b) and the amount of HK$346,585,489
standing to the credit of capital reduction
reserve account of the Company was applied
towards cancelling the accumulated losses
of the Company.

On 19 November 2012, the Company entered into
a placing agreement with a placing agent to place,
on best effort basis, a maximum of 32,339,200
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company to not less than six independent investors
at a price of HK$0.55 per placing share.

The placing price represented a premium of
approximately 12.24% to the closing price of
HK$0.49 quoted on the Stock Exchange on 19
November 2012, being the date of the placing
agreement, and the net price for the placing was
approximately HK$0.51 per share. The Company
intended to use the net proceeds from the placing
as general working capital of the Group and for
future investment pursuant to the investment
objectives of the Company.

The placing was completed on 26 November
2012 and 32,339,200 new ordinary shares of the
Company were allotted and issued.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu
in all respects with the then existing shares.

19.

A (&)
Hret - (%)

(i (4#&)

(b) BBFHTRAMRDE
007 T B R A=
fi% 7 #0.087T K9 & B A% 19
B8R B AR B B RS
¥0.0170 © UWIBKEIE
¥0.01 T FT A% - IR IE R
BB BTGB
B ARRBEHITHRAER
i 78 #12,935,6807T (£
R EAEEE0.01T W
1,293,568,0140% & 3@ A%)
B A B 1,616,9607T
(B E S| ES%0.01
JC B9161,696,001 % & @
B%) 5 &
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A AUFEHEAQAR
FTETHE ©

(i) MZE—=—F+—HA+hB K
NEH—-FZRERE L TRES
Wi MBONEEEARRARS
32,339,200% & i% ™ B & #£0.01
TR L RBRES T HIRAE
BUEE ERESRHER
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20. RESERVES 20. f#&
Company b N
Capital
Share reduction  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
ROEE  EERAEE ZRFR CH
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
ks ks B ks
At 1 January 2012 WZE-—5—F—H 461,570,664 346,585,489 (626,833,552) 181,322,601
Issue of shares under rights issue RBERE TR 77,614,081 - - 77,614,081
Issue of shares under placement REREZTRY 17,463,168 - - 17,463,168
Share issue expenses BARMZEY (5,706,105) - - (5,706,105)
Creation of capital reduction reserve  RERASEEL Y
pursuant to capital reorganisation Bl IR A G - 11,318,720 - 11,318,720
Capital reduction reserve set off BERAER SRR G
against accumulated losses pursuant 3 25t 12
to capital reorganisation - (357,904,209) 357,904,209 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year  FRZHEEERESE - - (43,984,309) (43,984,309)
At 31 December 2012 RZB--—F£+-A=1+-H 550,941,808 - (312,913,652) 238,028,156
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%F—-F—H 459,148,864 346,585,489 (335,979,726) 469,754,627
Issue of shares under subscription REZERTRD 2,465,000 - - 2,465,000
Share issue expenses Bk Ex (43,200) - - (43,200)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERZEEERS - - (290,853,826) (290,853,826
At 31 December 2011 RZF——F+-A=+—H 461,570,664 346,585,489  (626,833,552) 181,322,601

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands,
share premium and capital reduction reserve subject
to the Company’s memorandum and article of
association of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders, which is subject to a solvency
test. The Company had a distributable reserve of
HK$238,028,156 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:

HK$181,322,601).
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21.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In light of the requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the "Option Scheme”) on 2 May
2003. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended
subject to resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company, the Option
Scheme will remain in force for ten years from
the date of adoption. Under the Option Scheme,
the directors of the Company may grant options
to those participants who, in the opinion of the
Board, have contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest.
Eligible participants of the Option Scheme include
any directors and employee of any members of
the Group or any invested entities, any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of the
Group or any invested entities and any vendor,
supplier of goods or services or customer of or to
any member of the Group or invested entities.

The total number of shares to be issued under the
Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’'s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any eligible individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
directors of the Company, substantial shareholder
or any of his or her associates in any one year is
not permitted: (i) to exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time; and (ii)
to have an aggregate value based on the official
closing price of the Company’s share as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant in excess of HK$5 million, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

21.
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21.

——FtZH=1—HIFFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Under the Options Scheme, the options granted
may be accepted within twenty-eight days from
the date of offer upon payment of HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof by the grantee.
Options may be exercised at any time not exceeding
a period of ten years from the date on which
the share option is granted. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, but
in any event shall not less than the highest of: (i)
the official closing price of the Company’s share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of
the official closing price of the Company’s share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

No share options were granted, lapsed, exercised
or expired under the Option Scheme during the
financial year of 2012 and 2011.
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22. CHARGE OF ASSETS AND MARGIN FACILITIES

23.

As at 31 December 2012, margin facilities from
several regulated securities brokers were granted
to the Group which were secured by the Group’s
available-for-sale investments and investments held
for trading. As at 31 December 2012, a total amount
of HK$Nil (20711: HK$22,864,546) had been utilised
against these facilities and the total carrying amount
of the available-for-sale investments and investments
held for trading charged to the securities brokers is
HK$223,884,246 (2011: HK$250,835,623).

The margin facilities granted by two of the brokers
constituted continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules and the relevant disclosures are
made in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

DEFERRED TAXATION
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

22.

23.

EEEARRIZLSEE

RZZE——F+-A=+—H "' %4
RAEBRLFLLMAIEERERES
=B MZSEEUAERZA#
HERERIBEEBEREFER -
RZE—Z—F+ZA=+—H" B
FAEEEARAEK T (ZF—
F : JBEH22 864,5467T) 0 KR T
BHELLE 2 IHEERERFBEESR
WEZREBERB223,884,246

L (= F——4F : jE#250,835623
JT) °
BIELETRE - CHMBLELART

LRECEEBRFERERS - 1
ARBRIER A FRIETERERN -

IERERH
HUATEEMEELE 2 RERZIELEH
HEE

2012 2011

—E2-=fF —T——%F

HK$ HK$

B B

Deductible temporary differences ATHR B By = R 243,487 362,287
Tax losses 7% B 18 1,025,330,797 936,172,269
At 31 December R+=ZHA=+—H 1,025,574,284 936,534,556
Neither the tax losses nor the deductible temporary B ITRIFSIE M - BiFSE a8 KAl
differences expire under current tax legislation. Be BT AL S FAN R BT o H A Ak R fE 8
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in BRI R AT et A E B h e A HE
respect of these items because it is not probable Rt M ES AR ERELER

that future taxable profit will be available against
which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.

HEE °
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24. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 24, EERMARSE
2012 2011
—B-CF —T——%F
HK$ HK$
B ot
Loss before taxation FR LRI E 18 (86,232,011) (246,407,511)
Depreciation e 535,874 1,249,327
Changes in fair value of listed BRIEFIEEERE
equity investments classified under Dz EER
investments held for trading &,éfz/ﬁfﬂﬁ“ (3,982,364) 45,735,070
Changes in fair value of unlisted debt BERBRARE
investments designated as at J D23 ETER
fair value through profit or loss BEZRRER - 13,000,000
Impairment of listed equity RETHEERE
investments classified under Dz EhiEs
available-for-sale investments K& ZRE 36,971,016 91,881,944
Realised loss on disposal of listed HERBAHEE
equity investments classified RENEZ FitEsm
under available-for-sale investments wREZBEEER 38,781,423 22,224,766
Realised loss on disposal of HERBETHEE
unlisted equity investments classified REDHEZ I EiEs
under available-for-sale investments KREZEEHEEE - 1,218,332
Gain on redemption of REAEHERE
unlisted debt investments classified DERZELTES
under available-for-sale investments WE BRI - (1,526,250)
Interest income FEHA (3) (44,565)
Interest expenses M BRI 1,187,788 1,621,296
Dividend income EXON (1,679,092) (502,308)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BFER
plant and equipment Bl € - (533,300)
Change in working capital: LEESEE
Financial assets at BREREARE
fair value through profit or loss SRz RIEE 25,371,568 (14,230,257)
Other receivables E sk 1,242,553 12,103,056
Other payables and accruals HEibENTREAER (23,710,659) 16,652,762
Cash used in operations EEMARE (11,513,907) (57,557,638)
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25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 25. REHNAE
The Group leases a number of properties and AEBRBLEMRNEELZEYER
machinery under operating leases, which typically e —MRVTRBENESFAE
run for an initial period of 1 to 5 years, with an AEERFERRETEERE
option to renew the lease when all terms are Mo EMHEESTBIEXRES -
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.
At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had RIB-——FR-F——F+ZH=
total future aggregate minimum lease payments +—8 " $EI$ETFTTT§H¢JZZ‘“M
under non-cancellable operating leases, which are MAZBRRRENT 2 BB E R K
payable as follows: AW :
2012 2011
—ZE-—fF —T——F
HKS HKS
Within one year —F K 1,294,412 668,337
In the second to fifth years F_FEFRF
(both years inclusive) (BIEEEMT) 570,230 157,462
1,864,642 825,799
26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 26. FREME
Financial guarantee issued 28 H 2 MR

The Company had corporate guarantee for securities
trading account maintained by one of its subsidiaries
with a broker, which were unutilised (2011: HK$Nil)
at the year end date.

The Company has not recognised any deferred
income for the corporate guarantee given in respect
of the securities trading facilities for subsidiaries as
their fair value cannot be reliably measured and their
transactions prices were zero.

The directors of the Company do not consider
probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantee at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

RARIESR —KMBRRINKLRE
AR EFEEFPORBLEER
REHEBIRBA (ZF——F : &
MET) o

ERMBARICEFEEMEZAA
ETRERSEE  MABXZERR
T AR ERZEREMREZ
P EERERTETHA ©

R-TE——FR-_FT——F+-_f=
+—H  ARFEZER/ARFRAME
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27.

BE—F——F1+_A=4+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity and debt investments, other receivables and
other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and
the policies applied by the Group to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Financial risk factors

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
utilisation of margin facilities of securities brokers.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, if interest rates
had been 200 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the effect on the
Group’s net loss would be minimal.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for both derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 200 basis
point increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
report date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2011.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

As a result of overseas investments included in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
denominated in Singapore Dollars (“SGD"), the
Group is exposed to the movement in the HKD/SGD
exchange rates.

At 31 December 2012, if these currencies had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against HKD with
all other variables kept constant, the Group’s net
loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$594,000 (20711: approximately HK$384,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of those overseas
investments denominated in different currencies.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the end of reporting period and
had been applied to Group’s exposure to currency
risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables remain constant, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The stated
changes in foreign currency represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next
annual report date. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between HKD and USD would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of USD against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of short-term borrowings and utilisation of
margin facilities of securities brokers. The Group
will keep reviewing its financial needs from time to
time to determine the timing of obtaining various
borrowings or carrying out fund raising activities.

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group's and the Company’s liabilities other
than interest-bearing borrowing amounted
to HK$356,367 and HK$331,368 (207117:
HK$24,525,930 and HK$1,622,384) were due on
demand. Interest-bearing borrowing amounted to
HK$50,000,000 has been fully settled as shown in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F1+-_A=4+—HIFE
27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Price risk

As set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated
certain of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value at each reporting period. Therefore, the

financial statements,

Group’s investments in equity securities are exposed
to equity price risk, while investments in unlisted
convertible debt securities are exposed to the
interest rate risk, the credit risk and the equity price
risk of the underlying shares of the debt securities
issuers.
these risks centrally by monitoring the change of
market prices of the equity and debt securities
from time to time, and by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different profiles both in Hong
Kong and overseas. The sensitivity analysis has
been determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk. At the reporting date, if the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
had been 5% higher/lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s net loss would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$3,438,000
(2011: decreasel/increase by approximately
HK$4,507,000).

The management manages exposure to

Whereas, if the fair value of available-for-sale
investments had been 5% higher/lower with all
other variables remain unchanged, the Group’s
equity will increase/decrease by approximately
HK$7,757,000 (20711: increase/decrease by

approximately HK$8,035,000).

27.
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BE—F——F1+_A=4+—HIFE
27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk for all financial
assets that a counterparty in a transaction may
default on settlement. The maximum exposure
equals to the carrying amount of these financial
assets.

The Group's other financial assets, including bank
balances, unlisted debt investments and other
receivables have a maximum exposure of credit risk
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
The Group’s bank balances are placed with
credit-worthy banks in Hong Kong.

At the end of reporting period, the Company has
a concentration of credit risk as approximately
100% (2011: 100%) of the total amounts due
from subsidiaries was due from the two largest
subsidiaries.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide
any guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to provide returns for
shareholders. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividend to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts. No changes were made in the
objectives during the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2011.
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BE—F——F1+-_A=4+—HIFE
27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

Pursuant to the provision of articles of association
of the Company, the Company may exercise its
borrowing power to borrow up to an aggregate
principal amount for the time being remaining
discharged of all money borrowed by the Group not
exceeding 50% of the net asset value. The Group
monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted
capital. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the
consolidated statement of financial position date

27.

CHEBREEEERBE (£)
EXERE (&)
REBEARRABERME ZH - K
RAAITERERESN - BAREHE
BRZRTHBEEFEN%R A
SEERMAERNEERBRZIHIE - K
SEZREBHEAERER LR (AE
BFREERAKRBENR) BEEEN -
REFE B FIR R B 2 B E &5
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were as follows:

2012 2011

—EB-C—F —ZE——F

HKS$ HK$

pided B

Interest-bearing borrowing FEER - 50,000,000

Due to securities brokers BERBHEL 2R - 22,864,546
Less: Cash balance maintained B BEREZREHET

with a broker - (23)

Less: Bank balances and cash B BITEERIRS (8,347,968) (1,413,801)

Net (receivable) payable (RMR) BT F0FE (8,347,968) 71,450,722

Total equity % 240,321,016 185,634,471

Net of unrealised reserves REIN S FERE (3,190,362) 39,409,871

Adjusted capital PR S WIN 237,130,654 225,044,342

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio  EHHKABEERL R Not applicable 32%

TER
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BE—F——F1+_A=4+—HIFE
27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the carrying amounts of financial instruments
approximate their fair value and accordingly no
separate disclosure of the fair value of these items
are presented.

The fair value of listed securities included in
available-for-sale investments and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is based on the
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant
stock exchange.

Certain unlisted securities included in
available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value
after the carrying amounts are determined to be
impaired.

The fair value of unlisted debt securities included in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
arrived by using Binomial Tree Pricing Model.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at 31
December 2012 and 2011 across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments;

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data;
and

J Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured

using valuation techniques in which any

significant input is not based on observable

market data.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 27.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

& Bl AL B

EEEEREE (&)

Assets measured at fair value BARBEEZEE
2012 —s——f
The
The Group Company
rEE b N
Level 1
Level 1 Level 2 Total and total
F—B
E—E EZE &t Rk&st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B it it it
Financial assets at EBRBHEANE
fair value through SRz eREE
profit or loss
Listed equity investments FiERRE 68,753,877 - 68,753,877 11,884,409
Available-for-sale AHEEERE
investments
Listed equity investments tiERRE 155,130,369 - 155,130,369 -
223,884,246 - 223,884,246 11,884,409
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 27.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value (Continued)

CHEBREEEERBE (£)

BOAREFEZEE (&)

2011 —= &
The
The Group Company
REE ViAYNS]
Level 1
Level Level 2 Total and total
F—E
£ FE CH A&t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Financial assets at BERBRRANE
fair value through JIfRz SRMEE
profit or loss
Listed equity investments iR RE 56,143,081 - 56,143,081 7,685,069
Unlisted debt investments FEMEKRE - 34,000,000 34,000,000 -
Available-for-sale AHEERE
investments
Listed equity investments FiERRE 160,692,542 - 160,692,542 -
216,835,623 34,000,000 250,835,623 7,685,069

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers

into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.
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Financial Summary
M2

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
“E--f ~“ET-——% —Z-TF “TTHNE _—BT)\F

HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$
it Bk ot B Bk

Results E

Turnover SEL ] (2,005,477)  (63,406,376)  (29,978,152)  (16,039,273)  (6,334,669)

Loss for the year FREE (86,232,011) (246,407,511)  (64,961,714) (100,618,027) (458,429,088)

Taxation 1A - . - - _

Loss attributable ARAIERHEA

to equity holders of the Company ~ E(EEE (86,232,011) (246,407,511)  (64,961,714) (100,618,027) (458,429,088)

Assets and liabilities BEREE

Total assets BELR 240,677,383 260,160,401 481,395,760 299,091,228 185,081,654

Total liabilities BfEER (356,367)  (74,525,930)  (7,414,264)  (2,575,834) (31,630,802

Total equity B 240,321,016 185,634,471 473,981,496 296,515,394 153,450,852
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